UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K

CURRENT REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): June 15, 2005



INCORPORATED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

<u>Kentucky</u> (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation) <u>0-1469</u> (Commission File Number) <u>61-0156015</u> (IRS Employer Identification No.)

700 Central Avenue, Louisville, Kentucky 40208 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(Solution (<u>(502)-636-4400</u>) (Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Not Applicable

(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)

Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following provisions:

[] Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

[] Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

[] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

[] Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Item 1.01 Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement.

(1) On March 10, 2005, the Board of Directors of Churchill Downs Incorporated (the "Company") adopted amendments to the 2005 Churchill Downs Incorporated Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), subject to approval by the Company's shareholders, which was obtained at the Company's annual meeting held June 16, 2005.

The purpose of the Plan is to provide eligible executives and directors of the Company and its affiliated companies an opportunity to defer to a future date the receipt of base and bonus compensation for services as well as, in the case of directors of the Company, fees paid to the director for services performed as a board member ("Director Fees"). The Plan is intended to be a deferred compensation plan compliant with the requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the "Compensation Committee"). Subject to any legal requirements, the Committee may designate any management employees or highly compensated employees of the Company or any of the Company's directors as eligible to participate in the Plan.

Under the Plan, eligible participants commence participation on the next January 1 following the date the participant files a deferral election with the Compensation Committee or its designated agent. Under such election, the participant may elect to defer the receipt of all or a portion of compensation or Director Fees earned or payable after the effective date of the election and have this amount credited to the participant's account pursuant to the terms of the Plan. The deferral elections continue from year to year until revoked or modified by the participant pursuant to the terms of the Plan. For employees, the Plan also provides for employer matching and discretionary contributions.

Amounts deferred under the Plan pursuant to an election are credited to the participant's account as soon as administratively practical after the date the deferrals would otherwise have been payable to the participant under normal payroll practices. Compensation and Director Fees credited to a participant's account and notional earnings are one hundred percent vested and nonforfeitable, subject to certain adjustments described in the Plan. Amounts credited to a participant's account may be kept in any investment vehicles or assets as selected by the Committee, subject to the right of participants to make an investment election under the Plan. Amounts in a participant's account shall be distributed as elected by the participant, subject to the provisions of the Plan. Distributions under the Plan generally occur upon separation from service.

Under the amendments approved by the Company's shareholders June 16, 2005, directors may elect to have all or part of Director Fees deferred on or after January 1, 2005, notionally invested in shares of the Company's common stock. The Plan reserves 5,000 shares of common stock for issuance in connection with deferrals under the Plan by director participants. Directors will not have voting rights or other rights attributable to stock ownership with respect to such shares prior to distribution under the Plan. Stock elections will be irrevocable with respect to amounts that have been notionally invested but a director may at any time revoke his or her stock election with respect to Director Fees earned or payable after the date the revocation is delivered to the Compensation Committee in accordance with procedures established by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee will establish a stock account in the name of each director participant who makes a stock election (the "Stock Account"), and this Stock Account shall be included in the director's account under the Plan. As soon as administratively practical following each dividend payment date, a Director's Stock Account will be credited with additional notional common stock as if the cash dividend were reinvested in common stock. The number of shares notionally credited to the Stock Account of each director participant will be determined by reference to the fair market value of such stock as determined by the Compensation Committee. In the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or exchange of securities, merger, consolidation, recapitalization, spin-off or other distribution (other than normal cash dividends) of any or all of the assets of the Compensation Company to shareholders, or any other similar change or event effected without the receipt of consideration, such proportionate adjustments, if any, as the Compensation Committee in its discretion may deem appropriate to reflect such change or event will be made with respect to the common stock credited to a director's Stock Account. Amounts credited to a director's Stock Account will be distributed in common stock. No such distribution may be made less than six (6) months after any notional investment in common stock made by any director participant under the Plan. In the event of a defined change in control under the Plan, the Stock Account of a director will be distributed.

A copy of the Plan is attached to this report as Exhibit 10.1 and is incorporated herein by reference. The description of the Plan is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Plan.

(2) On June 15, 2005, the Company announced the employment of William C. Carstanjen as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Development Officer, pursuant to an employment agreement effective July 5, 2005 (the "Employment Agreement"). The Employment Agreement was approved by the Company's Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee of the Company's Board of Directors. The following is a brief overview of the Employment Agreement. It is not a complete description of all terms of the agreement and is qualified in its entirety by the full text of the Employment Agreement which is included herewith as Exhibit 10.2 and incorporated by reference herein, and the press release announcing Mr. Carstanjen's employment is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1.

Mr. Carstanjen's salary, effective as of July 5, 2005, shall be \$320,000 a year. Salary adjustments if any shall be made at the discretion of the Compensation Committee but in no event may the base salary be reduced below the annualized base salary paid in the preceding year. Mr. Carstanjen will be entitled to participate in the Company's Incentive Compensation Plan, and his award for 2005 is guaranteed to be no less than 60% of his annual base salary without any pro-ration due to time of employment. Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Carstanjen is entitled to a grant of 5,500 shares of restricted stock on July 5, 2005 which will vest in five years under the terms of the Company's Restricted Stock Plan. In addition, in November 2005, Mr. Carstanjen shall be awarded no less than 5,500 shares of restricted stock as part of the annual long-term incentive awards to key executives. Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Carstanjen is also entitled to a \$900 per month automobile allowance, club dues, relocation expenses, and participation in all other plans and programs offered to the Company's employees and executives, including without limitation, the Company's employee stock purchase plan, deferred compensation plan, disability and group life insurance plans.

If Mr. Carstanjen's employment is terminated by the Company without "just cause" or in the event of a "constructive termination," as each such term is defined in the Employment Agreement, then, among other things, Mr. Carstanjen is entitled to the following termination benefits: (i) twenty four months' salary then in effect; (ii) pro rata annual bonus based at a minimum on his target bonus under the Company's Incentive Compensation Plan; (iii) the balance of any long-term or annual cash incentive awards, if any, earned but not yet paid subject to the applicable program; (iv) continuation of employee benefits for six months from the date of termination; and (v) elimination of the restriction period on any shares of restricted stock issued to him under the Company's Restricted Stock Plan.

If the Company terminates Mr. Carstanjen without "just cause" or there is a "constructive termination" of employment and benefits paid to Mr. Carstanjen under the Employment Agreement or otherwise would constitute a parachute payment under Section 280G(b)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code which would subject him to an excise tax under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, Mr. Carstanjen will be entitled to receive an additional tax gross-up payment from the Company in an amount which after imposition of all federal, state and local income and excise taxes, is equal to the excise tax on all such payments received by Mr. Carstanjen.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

- Exhibit No. Description
- Exhibit 10.1 2005 Churchill Downs Incorporated Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended.

Exhibit 10.2 Employment Agreement, effective as of July 5, 2005, by and between Churchill Downs Incorporated and William C. Carstanjen.

Exhibit 99.1 Press Release.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED

<u>By: /s/Thomas H. Meeker</u> Thomas H. Meeker President and Chief Executive Officer

2005 CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

(Effective January 1, 2005)

2005 CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (Effective January 1, 2005)

Table of Contents

| SECTION 1. | ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF PLAN | 1 |
|------------|--|-----|
| SECTION 2. | DEFINITIONS | 1 |
| SECTION 3. | PARTICIPATION, CONTRIBUTIONS AND DEFERRALS | .5 |
| SECTION 4. | VESTING AND ADMINISTRATION OF ACCOUNTS | .7 |
| SECTION 5. | DISPOSITION OF PARTICIPANT ACCOUNTS | .9 |
| SECTION 6. | COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION | .13 |
| SECTION 7. | ADOPTION AND WITHDRAWAL | 4 |
| SECTION 8. | CLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURES | 14 |
| SECTION 9. | MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS | 15 |

2005 CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (Effective January 1, 2005)

SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF PLAN

- 1.1 <u>Establishment and Restatement of Plan.</u> The Board established the 2005 Churchill Downs Incorporated Deferred Compensation Plan effective January 1, 2005.
- 1.2 <u>Purpose of Plan</u>. The purpose of the Plan is to provide eligible executives and directors of Company and its affiliated companies an opportunity to defer to a future date the receipt of base and bonus compensation for services as well as director's fees.
- 1.3 Internal Revenue Code §409A. The 2005 Churchill Downs Incorporated Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2005 Plan") is intended to be a new deferred compensation plan compliant with the requirements of new Code §409A which became effective for deferrals of compensation after December 31, 2004. This Plan amends the Churchill Downs Incorporated Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated effective January 1, 2001) which was in existence on December 31, 2004 (the "Prior Plan") by freezing the Prior Plan and all deferrals of compensation otherwise earned and vested on or prior to December 31, 2004 (including bonus compensation with respect 2004 service), pursuant to an election made on or prior to December 31, 2004, are deferred under, and remain subject to, the provisions of the Prior Plan as it existed on October 3, 2004 (attached hereto as Exhibit A). It is intended that no deferrals will be made under the Prior Plan after December 31, 2004, except that an election made on or before December 31, 2004 with respect to salary earned for services performed during calendar year 2005 shall be a deferral under the Prior Plan but such deferral and any earnings thereon shall be subject to the requirements of Code §409A. For purposes of administrative convenience and efficiency and compliance with Code §409A, such deferral of 2005 salary and the earnings thereon may be transferred to the 2005 Plan provided such transfer conforms to, and does not cause the remaining deferrals under the Prior Plan and earnings thereon to become subject to, the requirements of Code §409A. All deferrals of compensation with respect to service performed after December 31, 2004 shall be governed by the terms of the 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan. Deferrals under the Prior Plan shall include all amounts transferred from any other plan of deferred compensation to the Prior Plan on or before October 3, 2004. The Company shall maintain separate bookkeeping accounts of Grandfathered Deferrals, including all earnings thereon, and amounts deferred under the 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan.

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

2.1 "<u>Account</u>" means the Participant's In-Service Account, Distribution Account and Transferred Account which are bookkeeping accounts established on the Company's records showing the amount of the Participant's accrued: (1) Employer contributions; (2) Compensation and Director's Fees deferred pursuant to the Participant's election; (3) in the case of a Transferred Account, deferred compensation transferred to the Plan pursuant to Section 3.9; and (4) any notional earnings and losses accrued thereon.

- 2.3 "<u>Compensation</u>" means the regular base salary and annual bonus or incentive compensation payable by the Employer to the Participant for services performed for the Employer.
- 2.4 "<u>Cause</u>," in connection with the termination of the Participant's employment with the Employer, means that, in the judgment of the Company's President, based upon any information or evidence reasonably persuasive to the President, the Participant: [i] willfully engaged in activities or conducted himself or herself in a manner seriously detrimental to the interests of the Employer, Company or its affiliates; or [ii] failed to execute the duties reasonably assigned to him or her in a reasonably timely, effective, or competent manner; provided, however, that the termination of the Participant's employment because of Disability shall not be deemed to be for Cause and the determination of Cause in the event of the President's employment termination shall be determined by the Board.
- 2.5 "<u>Change of Control</u>" means a change in the ownership or effective control of the Employer, or in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the Employer. To constitute a Change of Control with respect to a Participant, the event must relate to [a] the corporation for whom the Participant is performing services, [b] the corporation that is liable for the payment of the amounts deferred under this Plan, [c] a corporation that is the majority shareholder of a corporation identified in [a] or [b], or [d] any corporation in a chain of corporations in which each corporation is a majority shareholder of another corporation in the chain, ending in a corporation identified in [a] or [b]. For purposes of this definition, the attribution rules of Code §318(a) apply to determine stock ownership. Stock underlying a vested option is considered owned by the holder of the option, except where the option is exercisable for stock that is not vested.
 - (a) Change in the Ownership of a Corporation. A change in the ownership of a corporation occurs on the date that any one person, or more than one person acting as a group (as defined in paragraph (b)), acquires ownership of stock of the corporation that, together with stock held by such person or group, constitutes more than 50 percent of the total fair market value or total voting power of the stock of such corporation.
 - (b) Persons Acting as a Group. Persons will be considered to be acting as a group if they are owners of a corporation that enters into a merger, consolidation, purchase or acquisition of stock, or similar business transaction with the corporation. If a person, including an entity, owns stock in both corporations that enter into a merger, consolidation, purchase or acquisition of stock, or similar transaction, such shareholder is considered to be acting as a group with other shareholders in a corporation prior to the transaction giving rise to the change and not with respect to the ownership interest in the other corporation.
 - (c) Change in the Effective Control of the Corporation. Notwithstanding that a corporation has not undergone a change in ownership, a change in the effective control of a corporation occurs on the date that either
 - (i) Any one person, or more than one person acting as a group (as determined under paragraph (b)), acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period ending on the date of the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) ownership of stock of the corporation possessing 35 percent or more of the total voting power of the stock of such corporation; or

| ÷ | - | |
|---|----------|--|
| | , | |
| 4 | <u> </u> | |
| | | |

(ii) a majority of members of the corporation's board of directors is replaced during any 12-month period by directors whose appointment or election is not endorsed by a majority of the members of the corporation's board of directors prior to the date of the appointment or election, provided that for purposes of this paragraph (ii) the term corporation refers solely to the relevant corporation identified in the first paragraph of this Section for which no other corporation is a majority shareholder for purposes of that paragraph (for example, if Corporation A is a publicly held corporation with no majority shareholder, and Corporation A is the majority shareholder of Corporation B, which is the majority shareholder of Corporation for purposes of this paragraph (i) would refer solely to Corporation A).
If the period would be a purpose of the majority of the majority be appreciated as a publicly be appreciated by the period by the period by a paragraph (i) would refer solely to corporation A).

In the absence of an event described in paragraph (i) or (ii), a change in the effective control of a corporation will not have occurred.

- (d) Multiple Change in Control Events. A change in effective control also may occur in any transaction in which either of the two corporations involved in the transaction has a Change in Control.
- (e) Acquisition of Additional Control. If any one person, or more than one person acting as a group, is considered to effectively control a corporation, the acquisition of additional control of the corporation by the same person or persons is not considered to cause a change in the effective control of the corporation (or to cause a change in the ownership of the corporation).
- (f) Change in the Ownership of a Substantial Portion of a Corporation's Assets. A change in the ownership of a substantial portion of a corporation's assets occurs on the date that any one person, or more than one person acting as a group (as determined in paragraph (b)), acquires (or has acquired during the 12-month period ending on the date of the most recent acquisition by such person or persons) assets from the corporation that have a total gross fair market value equal to or more than 40 percent of the total gross fair market value of all of the assets of the corporation immediately prior to such acquisition or acquisitions. For this purpose, gross fair market value means the value of the assets of the corporation, or the value of the assets being disposed of, determined without regard to any liabilities associated with such assets.
- (g) Transfers to a Related Person. There is no Change in Control when there is a transfer to an entity that is controlled by the shareholders of the transferring corporation immediately after the transfer, as provided in this paragraph (g). A transfer of assets by a corporation is not treated as a change in the ownership of such assets if the assets are transferred to
 - (i) A shareholder of the corporation (immediately before the asset transfer) in exchange for or with respect to its stock;
 - (ii) An entity, 50 percent or more of the total value or voting power of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by the corporation;
 - (iii) A person, or more than one person acting as a group, that owns, directly or indirectly, 50 percent or more of the total value or voting

(iv) An entity, at least 50 percent of the total value or voting power of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by a person described in paragraph (iii).

For purposes of this paragraph (g) and except as otherwise provided, a person's status is determined immediately after the transfer of the assets. For example, a transfer to a corporation in which the transferor corporation has no ownership interest before the transaction, but which is a majority-owned subsidiary of the transferor corporation after the transaction is not treated as a change in the ownership of the assets of the transferor corporation.

- 2.6 "<u>Code</u>" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
- 2.7 "<u>Committee</u>" means the Compensation Committee of the Board.
- 2.8 "<u>Common Stock</u>" means the common stock, no par value, of the Company.
- 2.9 "<u>Company</u>" means Churchill Downs Incorporated, a Kentucky corporation, with its principal place of business at 700 Central Avenue, Louisville, Kentucky 40208.
- 2.10 "Director" means a member of an Employer's board of directors.
- 2.11 "Director Fees" means the retainer, meeting and other fees payable by the Employer to a member of an Employer's board of directors for service performed as a board member.
- 2.12 "<u>Disability</u>" or "<u>Disabled</u>" means the Participant [i] is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, or [ii] is, by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, receiving income replacement benefits for a period of not less than 3 months under an accident and health plan covering employees of the Employer.
- 2.13 "Distribution Account" means the Account established for the Participant for distribution to the Participant on or after separation from service at the Participant's election in accordance with Section 5.
- 2.14 "Employee" means an individual who is an employee of an Employer and who is part of a select group of management or highly compensated employees of the Employer within the meaning of Labor Reg. §2520.104-23.
- 2.15 "Employee" means the Company and any subsidiary or affiliated company that adopts the Plan as to its eligible Employees and Directors pursuant to Section 7.
- 2.16 "Employer Discretionary Contributions" means the contributions made by the Employer to a Participant's Account on a discretionary basis under Section 3.8.
- 2.17 "Employer Matching Contributions" means the matching contributions made by the Employer to a Participant's Account under Section 3.7.

- 2.18 "<u>In-Service Account</u>" means the Account established for the Participant for distribution to the Participant before the Participant's separation from service with the Employer at the Participant's election in accordance with Section 5.
- 2.19 "IRS" means the Internal Revenue Service, Department of the Treasury of the United States.
- 2.20 "Participant" means an Employee or Director who is or has been designated by the Committee as being eligible to participate in the Plan and who has an amount credited to an Account for his or her benefit under the Plan.
- 2.21 "<u>Performance Based Compensation</u>" means compensation where [i] the payment of the compensation or the amount of the compensation is contingent on the satisfaction of organizational or individual performance criteria, and [ii] the performance criteria are not substantially certain to be met at the time of a deferral election is permitted, including compensation based upon subjective performance criteria where [a] any subjective performance criteria relates to the performance of the Participant, a group which includes the Participant, or a business unit for which the Participant provides services (which may include the entire Employer), and [b] the determination that any subjective performance criteria have been met is not made by the Participant or a family member of the Participant (as defined in Code §267(c)(4) applied as if the family of an individual includes the spouse of any member of the family).
- 2.22 "<u>Plan</u>" means the 2005 Churchill Downs Deferred Compensation Plan as described herein, and as amended from time to time.

- 2.23 "Profit Sharing Plan" means the Churchill Downs Incorporated Profit Sharing Plan.
- 2.24 "<u>Secretary</u>" means the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States.
- 2.25 "Stock Account" means the notional investment account established for a Director in accordance with Section 4.11.
- 2.26 "<u>Stock Election</u>" means the election referred to in Section 4.11.
- 2.27 "<u>Transferred Account</u>" means the Account established for the Participant, and reflecting deferred compensation transferred to the Plan pursuant to Section 3.9, for distribution to the Participant on or after separation from service at the Participant's election in accordance with Section 5 or as otherwise specified by the Committee pursuant to Section 3.9.
- 2.28 "<u>Unforeseeable emergency</u>" means a severe financial hardship to the Participant resulting from an illness or accident of the Participant, the Participant's spouse, or a dependent (as defined in Code §152(a)) of the Participant, loss of the Participant's property due to casualty, or other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the control of the Participant.

SECTION 3. PARTICIPATION, CONTRIBUTIONS AND DEFERRALS

3.1 <u>Eligibility</u>. The Plan is intended to constitute, and shall be administered to qualify as, a "top hat" plan exempt from the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, pursuant to Labor Reg. §2520.104-23 and shall be maintained strictly for a select group of management or highly compensated employees as contemplated by said regulation. Subject to the requirements of said regulation, the Committee may designate any of an Employer's management or highly compensated Employees or an Employer's Directors as being eligible to participate in the Plan. The Committee shall communicate designation of eligibility to the Employee or Director in writing as soon as administratively practicable.

- 3.2 <u>Commencement of Participation</u>. An Employee or Director who is designated as eligible to participate in the Plan in accordance with Section 3.1 shall commence participation on the next January 1 following the date the Employee or Director files his or her deferral election with the Committee, or its designated agent, in accordance with Section 3.4.
- 3.3 <u>Revocation of Right to Participate in Plan</u>. The Committee may revoke the right of any Participant to participate in the Plan, which revocation shall be effective with respect to Compensation and Director's Fees earned and payable after the date of such revocation. The revocation shall not alter or diminish the rights of the Participant with respect to amounts credited to the Participant's Account before the revocation.
- 3.4 <u>Participant Deferral Elections</u>. An Employee or Director who has been designated as eligible to participate in the Plan may elect, in writing on forms approved by the Committee, to defer the receipt of all or a portion (in one percent (1%) increments) of his or her Compensation and Director's Fees earned and payable after the effective date of such election and have such amount credited to the Participant's Account pursuant to the terms of the Plan. The deferral election shall continue from year to year until revoked or modified by the Participant. Deferral elections, and revocation or modifications thereto, must be made during the period of time established by the Committee before the beginning of the calendar year and shall be effective on the January 1 following receipt by the Committee of the completed election form. Deferral elections with respect to bonus or incentive compensation payable on services performed in a calendar year must be made before the end of the preceding calendar year; provided, that in the case of Performance Based Compensation, the deferral election may be made not later than 6 months before the end of the performance period.
- 3.5 <u>No Deferrals During Long Term Disability</u>. A Participant may not make deferrals under this Plan during any period that the Participant is receiving benefits under a long term disability plan of an Employer.
- 3.6 <u>Revocation/Modification of Deferral Elections</u>. Deferral elections may be revoked or modified by the Participant by notifying the Committee in writing of such revocation or modification on forms available from the Committee. Any revocation or modification of a deferral election shall be effective on the January 1 following receipt by the Committee of a completed revocation/modification form. Deferral elections shall be automatically revoked on the effective date of Plan termination and on the date the Participant becomes ineligible to participate in the Plan. No modification of a deferral election shall alter the time and form of distribution of any prior deferral.
- 3.7 Employer Matching Contributions. The Account of a Participant who is an employee shall be credited with an Employer Matching Contribution on base compensation deferrals made to this Plan equal to the Employer Matching Contribution the Participant would have received under the Profit Sharing Plan (whether or not the Participant participates in the Profit Sharing Plan) but for the dollar limits applicable under the Profit Sharing Plan less any Employer Matching Contribution allocated to the Participant's account under the Profit Sharing Plan. No matching contributions shall be made on Transferred Accounts.

^{3.8 &}lt;u>Employer Discretionary Contributions</u>. The Employer, in its sole discretion, may make additional Employer Discretionary Contributions to the Account of any one or more Participants who are employees. Unless expressly so provided by the Committee, Employer Discretionary Contributions shall not be

made to Transferred Accounts. The amount of Employer Discretionary Contributions credited to a Participant's Account pursuant to this Section 3.8, if any, shall be determined by the Employer in its sole discretion.

3.9 <u>Transfer Contributions</u>. A Participant may request a transfer to the Plan of contributions deferred under another deferred compensation plan which qualified as an unfunded "top hat" arrangement under Title I of ERISA as well as for income tax purposes. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may elect whether or not to accept transfers from other deferred compensation plans. Unless otherwise specified by the Committee, deferred accounts transferred to this Plan shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan, including but not limited to the time and method of distribution and the Participant shall make a distribution election in accordance with Section 5. The Committee shall accept transfers from other deferred compensation plans only to the extent that such transfer, and any applicable timing and method of distribution, complies with the requirements of Code §409A and will not cause the transferred amounts, or amounts deferred under this Plan, to be subject to the additional tax imposed under Code §409A on deferrals which fail to meet the requirements of such Code §409A. No matching contributions shall be made on deferred compensation transferred to the Plan pursuant to this Section 3.9.

SECTION 4. VESTING AND ADMINISTRATION OF ACCOUNTS

- 4.1 <u>Credits/Debts to Account</u>. Compensation and Director's Fees deferred under this Plan pursuant to the Participant's election in accordance with Section 3.4 shall be credited to the Participant's Account as soon as administratively practical after the date the deferrals would otherwise have been payable to the Participant in accordance with the Employer's normal payroll practices. Matching contributions under Section 3.7 shall be credited to the Participant's Account at the time matching contributions are allocated to participant accounts under the Profit Sharing Plan. Employer discretionary contributions made by the Employer pursuant to Section 3.8 shall be credited to the Participant's Account at the time specified by the Employer.
- 4.2 <u>Establishment of Rabbi Trust</u>. The Company may establish an irrevocable grantor trust to provide a source of funds to assist the Employer in satisfying its liability to Participants and their beneficiaries under this Plan. If such rabbi trust is established, the Employer may make contributions to the trust, with respect to deferrals, in such manner and at such times as the Committee determines. The Employer may make contributions to the trust in such other manner and at such other times as the Committee determines. The Employer shall be the sole owner of the assets of the trust as to its participating Employees and Directors, and the assets of the trust shall be subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Employer. The sole interest of Participant and the Participant's beneficiaries to the assets of the trust shall be as a general creditor of the Employer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such trust, nor the assets held by such trust, shall be located outside the United States. In addition, no such trust shall provide for the assets thereof to become restricted to the provision of benefits under the Plan, or distributed to a Participant, as a result of a change in the financial health or condition of the Employer.

- 4.3 <u>Vesting of Deferrals</u>. Compensation and Director's Fees credited to a Participant's Account, and notional earnings thereon, shall be one hundred percent (100%) vested and nonforfeitable at all times, subject to adjustment for notional investment losses and deemed transaction fees in accordance with Section 4.6. Transferred Accounts shall be one hundred percent (100%) vested unless otherwise specified by the Committee pursuant to Section 3.9.
- 4.4 <u>Vesting of Employer Contributions</u>. A Participant shall be vested in Employer Matching Contributions credited to his or her Account pursuant to Section 3.7 and Employer Discretionary Contributions credited to his or her Account pursuant to Section 3.8, and earnings thereon, pursuant to the same vesting schedule applicable to Employer Matching Contributions and Employer Discretionary Contributions under the Profit Sharing Plan.
- 4.5 <u>Ownership and Investment of Accounts</u>. Subject to the limitations of Section 4.2, amounts credited to a Participant's Account may be kept in any investment vehicles or assets as may be selected by the Committee in its discretion, subject to the right of the Participant to make an investment election in accordance with Section 4.6. Each Employer shall be the owner of all amounts credited to the Accounts of its participating Employees and Directors until paid to the Participant pursuant to Section 5.
- 4.6 <u>Participant's Right to Direct Investment of Account</u>. A Participant may elect to have his or her Account notionally invested in such investment options as are selected by the Committee and made available to Participants for notional investment purposes under the Plan from time to time. The value of a Participant's Account at any time shall be the value of such underlying notional investments. The Committee shall be under no obligation to make such investments; however, the Committee shall debit or credit, as the case may be, the Participant's Account with notional earnings or losses as if said investments had actually been made. The Participant's Account shall be reduced by an amount equal to the brokerage or other transaction costs that would have been incurred in connection with the deemed purchase or sale of an investment. Until such time as investment options are made available by the Committee, a Participant's Account will be credited with notional interest equal to the prime rate listed in the Money Rates section of *The Wall Street Journal* on the first business day of the applicable month, plus 100 base points.
- 4.7 <u>Form of Investment Election</u>. The investment election, if any, must be in writing in a form approved by the Committee, and must be delivered to the Committee and otherwise comply with the rules pertaining to such elections as established by the Committee, on or before such date as the Committee may specify to be valid. The election must designate the percentage of the Account to be notionally invested in each investment option selected; provided, however, that the minimum allocable to any notional investment option shall be one percent (1%) and all percentage designations must be in multiples of one percent (1%). If the Participant fails to make a timely election pursuant to this Section 4.7, such Participant's deferrals shall be invested in a money market fund or its equivalent as designated by the Committee.
- 4.8 <u>Effective Date of Investment Election</u>. Any investment election made by the Participant pursuant to this Section 4 shall be effective as soon as administratively practicable after receipt by the Committee, pursuant to procedure established by the Committee and communicated to Participants.
- 4.9 <u>Changes to Investment Election</u>. Participants may change their investment allocation elections no more than twelve (12) times during any calendar year. Changes are made either by delivering a new investment election form to the Committee, or via an Internet website designated by the Committee, in accordance with the rules of Section 4 and procedures established by the Committee. Investment allocation changes must be in increments of one percent (1%) and shall be effective in accordance with the rules of Section 4.8.

- 4.10 <u>Assumption of Investment Risk</u>. The Participant agrees to assume all risk in connection with any change, including any decrease, in the value of Participant's Account which is notionally invested pursuant to the Participant's investment election in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4.
- 4.11 Director's Right to Direct Investment in Company Stock. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Section 4 to the contrary, each Director who is a Participant under the Plan may elect to have all or part of his or her Director Fees deferred on or after January 1, 2005, notionally invested in shares of the Company's Common Stock. An investment election by a Director under this Section 4.11 shall be subject to the rules established by the Committee pursuant to this Section 4 except as modified by the following special rules. Directors shall not have any voting rights or other rights attributable to stock ownership. An Employee who is not a Director is not eligible to make a Stock Election. Any amounts allocated to an In-Service Account shall not be eligible for a Stock Election. A Stock Election shall be irrevocable with respect to amounts that have been notionally invested. However, a Director may, at any time, revoke his or her Stock Election with respect to Director Fees earned and payable after the date the revocation is delivered to the Committee in accordance with procedures established by the Committee. The Committee shall establish a Stock Account in the name of each Director who makes a Stock Election, and such sub-account shall be included in the Participant's Distribution Account and shall be administered in accordance with procedures established by the Committee. As soon as administratively practicable following each dividend payment date, a Director's Stock Account shall be credited with additional notional Common Stock as if the cash dividend were reinvested in Common Stock. In the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or exchange of securities, merger, consolidation, recapitalization, spin-off or other distribution (other than normal cash dividends) of any or all of the assets of the Company to shareholders, or any other similar change or event effected without receipt of consideration, such proportionate adjustments, if any, as the Committee in its discretion may deem appropriate to reflect such change or event shall be made with respect to the Common Stock credited to a Director's Stock Account as of the applicable date. Subject to the adjustments set forth in the preceding sentence, the number of shares of Common Stock subject to notional investment under this Plan shall not exceed five thousand (5,000) shares. When the maximum number of shares of Common Stock subject to notional investment has been reached, no further Stock Election shall be effective.

SECTION 5. DISPOSITION OF PARTICIPANT ACCOUNTS

5.1 Plan Distribution Elections. Each Participant shall complete a distribution election with respect to his Distribution Account, Transferred Account and In-Service Distribution Account. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, amounts credited to a Participant's Account shall be paid to the Participant in accordance with the Participant's distribution election; provided, however, that if on the elected distribution date, any notional investment gains or losses cannot then be determined, such distribution shall be delayed until such accounting can be completed. Distribution elections [a] shall be in writing on forms approved by the Committee, [b] in the case of the In-Service Distribution Account, shall specify a distribution date in accordance with Section 5.2, [c] shall specify the form of distribution in accordance with Section 5.3, and [d] shall be filed with the Committee upon first becoming eligible to participate in the Plan. A Participant's In-Service Account distribution election, in addition to specifying an in-service distribution date, shall specify the form of distribution if the Participant separates from service before the designated date. A Participant may change his or her distribution election with respect to his or her Account (unless otherwise specified by the Committee in accordance with Section 3.9) at any time; provided, however, that [a] no change in an election shall take effect earlier than twelve (12) months from the date of the change election, [b] no change in the election may be made less than twelve (12) months prior to the date of the first scheduled payment of the original distribution election, and [c] with respect to a payment that is not the result of death, disability or unforeseeable emergency (except as may be hereafter permitted by regulations or guidance promulgated under Code §409A by the IRS or the Secretary of the Treasury) the first payment with respect to which such change in the election is made must be deferred for a period of not less than 5 years from the date such payment would otherwise have been made under the prior election. Any change of a prior distribution election which does not meet the foregoing requirements shall be ignored.

5.2 <u>Distribution Date</u>.

- (a) <u>Distribution and Transferred Accounts</u>. A Participant's Distribution Account, and the Participant's Transferred Account unless specified otherwise by the Committee pursuant to Section 3.9, shall be distributed to the Participant, in the manner elected by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.3, as soon as administratively practical, but not less than thirty (30) days, after the Participant's separation from service. For purposes of Section 5, the separation from service of a Participant with one Employer will not interrupt the continuity of participation of such Participant if, concurrently with or immediately after such separation, the Participant is employed by one or more of the other Employers who are participating Employers in accordance with Section 7. In the case of any Participant who is a key employee (as defined in §416(i) of the Code without regard to paragraph (5) thereof), distribution may not be made earlier than the date which is 6 months after the date of separation from service (or, if earlier, the date of death of the Participant). The preceding sentence shall not apply to the extent that none of the stock of the Employer is publicly traded on an established securities market or otherwise. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, no shares of Common Stock shall be distributed from the Participant's Stock Account earlier than a date which is 6 months after the date of acquisition of the derivative security (as described in Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) related to such shares.
- (b) <u>In-Service Account</u>. A Participant's In-Service Account shall be distributed to the Participant in a single sum, as soon as administratively practical following the date elected by the Participant at the time of the deferral (or as subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1) that is any December 31 on or after the sixth anniversary of the date the Participant first makes

deferrals to his or her In-Service Account, provided the Participant is still employed with the Employer on that date. If the Participant separates from service before the designated date, distribution shall be made to the Participant, in the form elected by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.3 at the time of such deferral (or as subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1), as soon as administratively practical, but not less than thirty (30) days, after the Participant's separation from service date; provided, that in the case of any Participant who is a key employee (as defined in §416(i) of the Code without regard to paragraph (5) thereof), distribution may not be made earlier than the date which is 6 months after the date of separation from service (or, if earlier, the date of death of the Participant) at any time that any of the stock of the Employer is publicly traded on an established securities market or otherwise.

- 5.3 Form of Distribution. Amounts credited to a Participant's Distribution Account and Transferred Account shall, at the Participant's election made under Section 5.1 (or subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1), be payable to the Participant in a single sum payment or in equal monthly installments over five (5) or ten (10) years. Amounts credited to a Participant's Stock Account shall be distributed in Common Stock, and except as provided in Section 5.10, all other amounts credited to a Participant's Distribution Account and Transferred Account shall be payable in cash. Amounts credited to a Participant's In-Service Account shall be distributed in accordance with Section 5.2 to the Participant in a single sum cash payment valued as of the December 31 elected by the Participant under Section 5.1 and Section 5.2 (or subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1) or, in the event of the Participant's separation from service before said date, shall be payable to the Participant in a single sum cash payment or in equal monthly cash installments over five (5) or ten (10) years, as elected by the Participant under Section 5.1 and Section 5.2.
- 5.4 Unforeseeable Emergency Distributions. In the event of an Unforeseeable Emergency, all deferrals pursuant to Section 3.3 shall cease and amounts credited to the Participant's Account as of the date of such emergency shall be paid to the Participant in a single sum payment as soon as administratively practicable after the date of the emergency. Notwithstanding the foregoing: [i] payment shall be limited to the amounts, as determined under regulations issued by the Secretary of the Treasury under Code §409A, necessary to satisfy such emergency plus amounts necessary to pay taxes reasonably anticipated as a result of the distributions, after taking into account the extent to which such emergency is or may be relieved through reimbursement or compensation by insurance or otherwise or by liquidation of the Participant's assets (to the extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause severe financial hardship). Any decision of the Committee with respect to the application of the provisions of this section shall have a presumption of correctness, and the burden shall be on Participant to rebut such presumption by a preponderance of the evidence. The Participant shall be provided with a reasonable opportunity to present any and all evidence on his or her behalf. In the absence of regulations issued by the Secretary (or other guidance by the IRS), no distributions shall be made in the event of an Unforeseeable Emergency.
- 5.5 <u>Disability Distributions</u>. If a Participant becomes Disabled, amounts credited to the Account of such Participant shall be distributed to the Participant as soon as administratively practicable following a determination of such Disability. The form of distribution shall be in accordance with the Participant's distribution election made in accordance with Section 5.1 and Section 5.3 (or as subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1).
- Death Distributions. If a Participant dies before distribution of all the amounts credited to his or her Account, any amounts remaining in the Participant's 5.6 Account shall be distributed to such deceased Participant's designated beneficiary or beneficiaries in the form specified by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.1 and Section 5.3 (or as subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1). Payments shall commence as soon as administratively practical after the date of the Participant's death. If distributions have already commenced before the Participant's death, the Participant's designated beneficiary will continue to receive payments according to the same schedule by which distributions had been made to the Participant before his or her death. All beneficiary designations shall be in writing on forms approved by the Committee and shall be filed with the Committee. A Participant may, at any time, revoke or change any beneficiary designation by filing a new written designation with the Committee. If there is no effective beneficiary designation filed with the Committee at the time of the Participant's death, distribution of amounts otherwise payable to the deceased Participant under the Plan shall be paid in a single sum cash distribution to the personal representative of the Participant's estate as a part of the Participant's estate. If a beneficiary designated by the Participant to receive the Participant's benefits shall survive the Participant but die before receiving all distributions hereunder, the balance thereof shall be paid in a single sum cash distribution to such deceased beneficiary's estate, unless either (i) the deceased beneficiary designates otherwise by a written beneficiary designation filed with the Committee, in which case such designation shall govern, or (ii) the Participant shall have expressly provided otherwise in the Participant's beneficiary designation. The Committee, upon making a reasonable effort to ascertain the identity of the proper beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive any amounts payable pursuant to these provisions shall be entitled to rely on information reasonably available to it, and upon making any payments provided herein to any beneficiary believed in good faith by the Committee to be entitled thereto, shall have no further liability to any person for such payments.

- 5.7 <u>Disposition of Account on Plan Termination</u>. Upon termination of the Plan in accordance with Section 9.1, distribution of Accounts shall be made, at the time and in the form elected by the Participant, according to the distribution election on file with the Committee at the time of such termination. In addition, the Company may determine, in its sole discretion, to terminate the Plan and cause a distribution of all Accounts in the event of a Change of Control. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, any Stock Accounts maintained for a Participant shall be distributed in a lump sum payment as soon as administratively practicable following a Change in Control.
- 5.8 <u>Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company</u>. To the extent provided in regulations issued by the Secretary, in the event the Employer employing the Participant ceases to be a subsidiary or affiliated company with Company and thus ceases to be a participating Employer as provided by Section 7.2, the Participant's deferral election and active participation in the Plan shall cease on the effective date of such event. Distribution of the Participant's Account shall be made at the time and in the form elected by the Participant pursuant to this Section 5.1 (or as subsequently modified in accordance with Section 5.1), unless the Committee and the Employer agree to transfer the Accounts of affected Participants to a deferred compensation plan of such Employer to be distributed to affected Participants pursuant to the terms of such transferee plan; provided that such

transfer can be made in compliance with the provisions of Code §409A and regulations thereunder and without causing to be subject to the amounts to be subject to the additional tax imposed by §409A.

- 5.9 <u>Accelerated Distributions; Accelerated Vesting</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, and except as provided in Section 5.1 with respect to change elections and 5.7 with respect to distributions upon plan termination, the timing of any distributions pursuant to a Participant's deferral elections may not be accelerated. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may [a] accelerate the time when Employer Matching Contributions and Employer Discretionary Contributions vest with respect to a Participant, [b] permit the distribution as may be necessary to fulfill a domestic relations order (as defined in Code §414(p)(1)(B), [c] permit distribution to pay FICA taxes on amounts deferred under the Plan, or [d] upon the Participant's separation from service with the Employer to make a lump sum cash out by December 31 of the year of separation from service, or within 2 ½ months thereafter, of the remainder of the Participant's Account which is not greater than \$10,000.
- 5.10 <u>In-Kind Distributions</u>. To the extent a distribution is otherwise permitted under the provisions of this Section 5, the Committee may, in its discretion, and subject to the requirements of the asset, make payment to the Participant or Participant's beneficiaries in kind in lieu of cash to the extent amounts credited to the Participant's Account are actually invested in an asset.

- 5.11 <u>Tax Withholding</u>. The Committee shall deduct from the distributions under the Plan any federal, state or local withholding or other taxes or charges which the Employer is required to deduct under applicable law. The Employer shall be entitled to deduct from other compensation payable to the Participant, any employment or other tax required to be withheld as amounts are deferred under the Plan.
- 5.12 <u>Presumed Competency</u>. Every person receiving or claiming payments under the Plan shall be conclusively presumed to be mentally competent until the date on which the Committee receives a written notice in a form and manner acceptable to the Committee that such person is incompetent and that a guardian, conservator or other person legally vested with the interest of his or her estate has been appointed. In the event a guardian or conservator of the estate or any person receiving or claiming payments under the Plan shall be appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, payments under the Plan may be made to such guardian or conservator provided that the proper proof of appointment and continuing qualification is furnished in a form and manner acceptable to the Committee. Any such payments so made shall be a complete discharge of any liability or obligation of Employer or the Committee regarding such payments.
- 5.13 <u>Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits</u>. Each Participant shall keep the Committee informed of his or her current address and the current address of his or her beneficiary. The Committee shall not be obligated to search for the whereabouts of any person. If the Committee is unable to locate any person to whom a payment is due under the Plan or a distribution payment check is not presented for payment, such payment shall be irrevocably forfeited at the earlier of: (1) the day preceding the date such payment would otherwise escheat pursuant to any applicable escheat law; or (2) the later of: [i] three (3) years after the date on which the payment was first due; or [ii] ninety (90) days after issuance of the check. Forfeited payments shall be returned to the source of the payment (*e.g.*, if benefits are funded through contributions by the Employer from its general assets, the forfeited payment shall be returned to the Employer; if the forfeited benefit payment is made from trust funds, the forfeited payment shall revert to the trust from which the payment was made).

SECTION 6. COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION

- 6.1 <u>Plan Committee</u>. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. A Participant who is also a member of the Committee shall not participate in any decision involving an election made by him or her or relating in any way to his or her individual rights, duties and obligations as a Participant under the Plan. The Committee may appoint one or more employees or agents to assist it in administration of the Plan and may delegate its duties under the Plan to such employees or agents.
- 6.2 <u>Committee Action</u>. A majority of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. All actions taken by the Committee at a meeting shall be by the vote of a majority of those present at such meeting but any action may be taken by the Committee without a meeting upon written consent signed by all of the members of the Committee.
- 6.3 <u>Plan Rules and Regulations</u>. The Committee may from time to time establish rules and regulations for the administration of the Plan and adopt standard forms for such matters as elections, beneficiary designations and applications for benefits, provided such rules and forms are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan.

- 6.4 <u>Determinations by Committee</u>. All determinations of the Committee, including, but not limited to, all questions of construction and interpretation, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all parties and the Committee shall have complete discretion in making such determinations.
- 6.5 <u>Plan Records</u>. The Committee shall be responsible for maintaining books and records for the Plan.

SECTION 7. ADOPTION AND WITHDRAWAL

- 7.1 <u>Adoption by Employers</u>. An Employer authorized by the Committee to participate in this Plan shall adopt the same by written acknowledgment to the Committee. By so adopting the Plan, such Employer designates the Company as the Employer entitled to administer the Plan and to amend or terminate the Plan through the Committee.
- 7.2 <u>Withdrawal of a Participating Employer</u>. A participating Employer may withdraw from the Plan as of any date upon ninety (90) days' advance written notice to the Committee, or upon such shorter notice as the Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit. If an Employer shall cease to exist or ceases to be an affiliate of Company, it shall automatically be withdrawn from participation in the Plan effective as of the date it ceases to exist or ceases to be an affiliated company unless a successor organization adopts the Plan with the consent of the Committee in accordance with the provisions of this section.
- 7.3 <u>Obligation of Employers</u>. Each Employer by adopting the Plan agrees to make all payments required under the Plan to be made or provided to or on behalf of the Participants employed by such Employer, and agrees that the liability for making such payments and providing such benefits shall be the sole and exclusive obligation of such Employer. In addition, each Employer by adopting this Plan agrees to pay all fees and reimburse all expenses to Company as required by the Committee and as agreed to by the parties in connection with the administration of this Plan.

SECTION 8. CLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURES

8.1 <u>Claims Procedure</u>. Any person who believes he or she is being denied any rights or benefits under the Plan may file a claim in writing with the Committee. If the claim is denied (in whole or part), the Committee will notify the claimant of its decision in writing. The notification will be written in a manner intended to be understood by the claimant and will contain [i] reasons for the denial, [ii] reference to pertinent Plan provisions, [iii] a description of additional material or information that is needed, and [iv] information as to the steps to be taken if the claimant wishes to submit a request for review. The notification will be given within ninety (90) days after the claim is received by the Committee (or within one hundred eighty (180) days, if special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim, and if written notice of the extension and circumstances is given to the claimant within the initial ninety (90) day period). If notification is not given within this period, the claim will be considered denied as of the last day of such period and the claimant may request review of the claim.

8.2 <u>Review Procedure</u>. Within sixty (60) days of the receipt by the claimant of the written notice of denial of the claim, or within sixty (60) days after the claim is deemed denied, if applicable, the claimant may file a written request with the Committee that it conduct a review of the claim, including the conducting of a hearing, if considered necessary by the Committee. In connection with the claimant's appeal of the denial of a benefit, the claimant may review pertinent documents and may submit issues and comments in writing. The Committee shall make a decision on the claim appeal not later than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the claimant's request for review, unless special circumstances (such as the need to hold a hearing, if necessary) require an extension of time for processing, in which case the sixty (60) day period may be extended to one hundred and twenty (120) days. The Committee shall notify the claimant in writing of any extension. The decision upon review shall [i] include specific reasons for the decision, [ii] be written in a manner intended to be understood by the claimant, and [iii] contain references to the Plan provisions on which the decision is based.

SECTION 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 9.1 <u>Amendment or Termination</u>. Company reserves the right to amend, modify, terminate or discontinue the Plan at any time and in a manner which complies with the provisions of Code §409A (and regulations issued thereunder), by appropriate action taken by the Committee, provided, however, that no such action shall reduce the amounts then credited to any Account of any Participant, subject to adjustment for notional investment losses and deemed transaction fees in accordance with Section 4.6 and the claims of the Employer's general creditors.
- 9.2 <u>Participant's Rights Unsecured</u>. The Employer shall remain the owner of amounts deferred under the Plan by its Employees and Directors participating in the Plan. The Participant and the Participant's beneficiary have only the Employer's unsecured promise to pay. The rights accruing to the Participant and the Participant's beneficiary are those of an unsecured general creditor of the Employer. Any contract, policy or other asset which the Employer may utilize to assure itself of the funds to make payment shall not serve in any way as security to the Participant or beneficiary for the Employer's performance under the Plan. Any account established under the Plan is for bookkeeping purposes only and shall not be considered to create a fund for the Participant or beneficiary.
- 9.3 <u>Nontransferability/Nonalienability</u>. No right of any Participant or beneficiary to receive any Plan payment shall be subject to alienation, transfer, sale, assignment, pledge, attachment, garnishment or encumbrance of any kind. Any attempt to alienate, sell, transfer, assign, pledge or otherwise encumber any such payments whether presently or thereafter payable shall be void. Subject to Section 9.7, any Plan payment due shall not in any manner be subject to debts or liabilities of any Participant, beneficiary or other person.
- 9.4 <u>Participant Obligation to Furnish Information</u>. Each person entitled to receive a Plan payment, whether a Participant, a duly designated beneficiary, a guardian or otherwise, shall provide the Committee with such information as it may from time to time deem necessary or in its best interest in administering the Plan. Any such person shall also furnish the Committee with such documents, evidence, data or other information as the Committee may from time to time deem necessary or advisable.
- 9.5 <u>No Right of Employment</u>. The Plan shall not be deemed to constitute a contract of employment between a Participant and the Employer, nor shall any Plan provision restrict the right of the Employer to discharge a Participant, or restrict the right of a Participant to terminate his or her employment.

- 9.6 <u>Plan Expenses</u>. Unless paid by the Employer, expenses of administering the Plan shall be paid by the Participants, except as otherwise provided herein, and shall be debited among Participant Accounts in a reasonable manner as determined by the Committee. Expenses that are specific to a Participant's Account shall be debited solely to such Participant's Account and shall not be spread among other Participants.
- 9.7 <u>Offsets</u>. As a condition to eligibility to participate in the Plan, each Participant consents to the deduction from amounts otherwise payable under the Plan to the Participant and the Participant beneficiaries of all amounts owed by the Participant to the Employer and the Company and its affiliates to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law.
- 9.8 <u>Limitation of Actions</u>. No lawsuit with respect to any benefit payable or other matter arising out or relating to the Plan may be brought before exhaustion of the claim and review procedures set forth in Section 8 and any lawsuit must filed no later than nine (9) months after a claim is denied or be forever barred.
- 9.9 <u>Governing Law</u>. The Plan shall be construed, administered and governed in all respects under and by the applicable laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. By participating in the Plan, the Participant irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and of any federal court located in Jefferson County, Kentucky in connection with any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to the Plan, any document or instrument delivered pursuant to or in connection with the Plan.

(Balance of page intentionally left blank)

16

Executed this 31st day of March, 2005 but effective January 1, 2005.

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED

By: <u>/s/Thomas H. Meeker</u> Title: <u>President & CEO</u> Date: <u>3/31/05</u>

17

EXHIBIT A CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

(As Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2001)

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

(As Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2001)

Table of Contents

| | | Page |
|------------|---------------------------------------|------|
| SECTION 1. | ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF PLAN | 1 |
| 1.1. | Establishment and Restatement of Plan | 1 |
| 1.2. | Purpose of Plan | 1 |
| SECTION 2. | DEFINITIONS | 1 |
| 2.1. | "Account" | 1 |
| 2.2. | "Board" | 1 |
| 2.3. | "Compensation" | 1 |
| 2.4. | "Cause" | 2 |
| 2.5. | "Code" | 2 |

| 2.6. 2.7. | "Committee" "Company" | 2 |
|--|---|--|
| 2.8. 2.9. | "Director" "Director Fees" | 2 |
| 2.10. | "Disability" or "Disabled" | 2 |
| 2.11. | "Distribution Account" | 2 |
| 2.12. 2.13. | "Employee" "Employer" | 2 |
| 2.14. | "Hardship" | 2 |
| 2.15. | "In-Service Account" | 3 |
| 2.16. 2.17. | "Participant" "Plan" | 3 |
| 2.18. | "Profit Sharing Plan" | 3 |
| SECTION 3. | PARTICIPATION, CONTRIBUTIONS AND DEFERRALS | 3 |
| 3.1. | Eligibility | 3 |
| 3.2. | Commencement of Participation | 3 |
| 3.3. 3.4. | Revocation of Right to Participate in Plan Participant Deferral Elections | 3 |
| 3.5. | No Deferrals During Long Term Disability | 4 |
| 3.6. | Revocation/Modification of Deferral Elections | 4 |
| 3.7. | Employer Matching Contributions | 4 |
| 3.8. 3.9. | Employer Discretionary Contributions Transfer Contributions | 4 |
| SECTION 4 | VESTING AND ADMINISTRATION OF ACCOUNTS | - |
| SECTION 4. 4.1. | VESTING AND ADMINISTRATION OF ACCOUNTS Credits/Debts to Account | 5 5 |
| 4.2. | Establishment of Rabbi Trust | 5 |
| 4.3. 4.4. | Vesting of Deferrals Vesting of Employer Contributions | 5 5 |
| 4.4. 4.5. | Ownership and Investment of Accounts | 5 |
| 4.6. | Participant's Right to Direct Investment of Account | 5 |
| 4.7. | Form of Investment Election | 6 |
| 4.8. 4.9. | Effective Date of Investment Election Changes to Investment Election | 6 6 |
| 4.10. | Assumption of Investment Risk | 6 |
| | | |
| SECTION 5. | DISPOSITION OF PARTICIPANT ACCOUNTS | 6 |
| | | |
| 5.1. | Plan Distribution Elections | 6 |
| 5.2. | Distribution Date | 7 |
| 5.2. 5.3. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution | 7 7 |
| 5.2. | Distribution Date | 7 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions | 7 7 7 8 8 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination | 7 7 8 8 8 8 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company | 7 7 8 8 8 8 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination | 7 7 8 8 8 8 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action | 7 7 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations Determinations by Committee | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 10 10 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations Determinations by Committee Plan Records | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations Determinations by Committee Plan Records | 7 7 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distribution Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations Determinations by Committee Plan Records ADOPTION AND WITHDRAWAL Adoption by Employers Withdrawal of a Participating Employer | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations Determinations by Committee Plan Records | 7 7 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. | Distribution Date Form of Distribution Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Action Plan Records ADOPTION AND WITHDRAWAL Adoption by Employers Withdrawal of a Participating Employer Obligation of Employers CLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURES | 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. | Distribution DateForm of DistributionHardship DistributionsDisability DistributionsDeath DistributionsDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated CompanyAccelerated DistributionsIn-Kind DistributionsTax WithholdingPresumed CompetencyForfeiture of Unclaimed BenefitsCOMMITTEE ADMINISTRATIONPlan CommitteeCommittee ActionPlan Rules and RegulationsDeterminations by CommitteePlan RecordsADOPTION AND WITHDRAWALAdoption by EmployersWithdrawal of a Participating EmployerObligation of EmployersCLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURESClaims Procedure | 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. 8.2. | Distribution Date Form of Distributions Hardship Distributions Disability Distributions Death Distributions Disposition of Account on Plan Termination Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company Accelerated Distributions In-Kind Distributions Tax Withholding Presumed Competency Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION Plan Committee Committee Committee Action Plan Rules and Regulations Determinations by Committee Plan Records ADOPTION AND WITHDRAWAL Adoption by Employers Withdrawal of a Participating Employer Obligation of Employers CLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURES Claims Procedure Review Procedure | 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. 8.2. SECTION 9. | Distribution DateForm of DistributionHardship DistributionsDisability DistributionsDeath DistributionsDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated CompanyAccelerated DistributionsIn-Kind DistributionsTax WithholdingPresumed CompetencyForfeiture of Unclaimed BenefitsCOMMITTEE ADMINISTRATIONPlan CommitteeCommittee ActionPlan Rules and RegulationsDeterminations by CommitteePlan RecordsADOPTION AND WITHDRAWALAdoption of EmployersWithdrawal of a Participating EmployerObligation of EmployersCLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURESClaims ProcedureReview ProcedureMISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS | 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. 8.2. SECTION 9. 9.1. | Distribution DateForm of DistributionHardship DistributionsDisability DistributionsDeath DistributionsDeath DistributionsDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated CompanyAccelerated DistributionsIn-Kind DistributionsTax WithholdingPresumed CompetencyForfeiture of Unclaimed BenefitsCOMMITTEE ADMINISTRATIONPlan CommitteeCommittee ActionPlan Rules and RegulationsDeterminations by CommitteePlan RecordsADOPTION AND WITHDRAWALAdoption by EmployersWithdrawal of a Participating EmployerObligation of EmployersCLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURESClaims ProcedureReview ProcedureMISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONSAmendment or Termination | 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. 8.2. SECTION 9. | Distribution DateForm of DistributionHardship DistributionsDisability DistributionsDeath DistributionsDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated CompanyAccelerated DistributionsIn-Kind DistributionsTax WithholdingPresumed CompetencyForfeiture of Unclaimed BenefitsCOMMITTEE ADMINISTRATIONPlan CommitteeCommittee ActionPlan Rules and RegulationsDeterminations by CommitteePlan RecordsADOPTION AND WITHDRAWALAdoption of EmployersWithdrawal of a Participating EmployerObligation of EmployersCLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURESClaims ProcedureReview ProcedureMISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. 8.2. SECTION 9. 9.1. 9.2. 9.3. 9.4. | Distribution DateForm of DistributionHardship DistributionsDisability DistributionsDeath DistributionsDeath DistributionsDeath DistributionsDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated CompanyAccelerated DistributionsIn-Kind DistributionsTax WithholdingPresumed CompetencyForfeiture of Unclaimed BenefitsCOMMITTEE ADMINISTRATIONPlan CommitteeCommitteeCommitteeCommitteeCommitteePlan Rules and RegulationsDeterminations by CommitteePlan RecordsADOPTION AND WITHIDRAWALAdoption of EmployersWithdrawal of a Participanting EmployerObligation of EmployersCLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURESClaims ProcedureReview ProcedureMISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONSAmendment or TerminationParticipant's Rights UnsecuredNontransferability/NonalienabilityParticipant Obligation to Furnish Information | 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |
| 5.2. 5.3. 5.4. 5.5. 5.6. 5.7. 5.8. 5.9. 5.10. 5.11. 5.12. 5.13. SECTION 6. 6.1. 6.2. 6.3. 6.4. 6.5. ARTICLE 7. 7.1. 7.2. 7.3. SECTION 8. 8.1. 8.2. SECTION 9. 9.1. 9.2. 9.3. | Distribution DateForm of DistributionHardship DistributionsDisability DistributionsDeath DistributionsDeath DistributionsDisposition of Account on Plan TerminationDisposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated CompanyAccelerated DistributionsIn-Kind DistributionsTax WithholdingPresumed CompetencyForfeiture of Unclaimed BenefitsCOMMITTEE ADMINISTRATIONPlan CommitteeCommittee ActionPlan Rules and RegulationsDeterminations by CommitteePlan RecordsADOPTION AND WITHDRAWALAdoption of EmployersCLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURESClaims ProcedureReview ProcedureMISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONSAmendment or TerminationParticipant's Rights UnsecuredNontransferability/Nonalienability | 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 |

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (As Amended and Restated Effective January 1, 2001)

SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE OF PLAN

- 1.1. <u>Establishment and Restatement of Plan</u>. The Board established the Churchill Downs Incorporated Deferred Compensation Plan effective April 1, 1999. The plan is amended and restated herein effective January 1, 2001.
- 1.2. <u>Purpose of Plan</u>. The purpose of the Plan is to provide eligible executives and directors of Company and its affiliated companies an opportunity to defer to a future date the receipt of base and bonus compensation for services as well as director's fees.
- 1.3. Incentive Compensation Plan (1985) Merger. The Churchill Downs Incorporated Incentive Compensation Plan (1985) (the "Incentive Plan") is merged into this Plan effective January 1, 2001. Thomas H. Meeker is the sole participant in the Incentive Plan and his Deferred Payment Account under the Incentive Plan is 100% vested. His Deferred Payment Account under the Incentive Plan shall be reflected as a fully vested bookkeeping account under this Plan as transferred funds pursuant to Section 3.9 of this Plan. Said Transferred Account shall be governed by the terms and conditions of this Plan effective January 1, 2001. Meeker shall make an investment election with respect to his Transferred Account in accordance with Section 4.6 and shall make an election for distribution of the Transferred Account on or after his employment termination in accordance with Section 5.3; provided that if Meeker's employment terminates within eighteen (18) months of said distribution election, the distribution election he made with respect to his Deferred Payment Account under the Incentive Plan shall control.

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

- 2.1. "<u>Account</u>" means the Participant's In-Service Distribution Account, Distribution Account and Transferred Account which are bookkeeping accounts established on the Company's records showing the amount of the Participant's accrued: (1) Employer contributions; (2) Compensation and Director's Fees deferred pursuant to the Participant's election; (3) in the case of a Transferred Account, deferred compensation transferred to the Plan pursuant to Section 3.9; and (4) any notional earnings and losses accrued thereon.
- 2.2. "Board" means Company's Board of Directors.
- 2.3. "<u>Compensation</u>" means the regular base salary and annual bonus or incentive compensation payable by the Employer to the Participant for services performed for the Employer.
- 2.4. "<u>Cause</u>," in connection with the termination of the Participant's employment with the Employer, means that, in the judgment of the Company's President, based upon any information or evidence reasonably persuasive to the President, the Participant: [i] willfully engaged in activities or conducted himself or herself in a manner seriously detrimental to the interests of the Employer, Company or its affiliates; or [ii] failed to execute the duties reasonably assigned to him or her in a reasonably timely, effective, or competent manner; provided, however, that the termination of the Participant's employment because of Disability shall not be deemed to be for Cause and the determination of Cause in the event of the President's employment termination shall be determined by the Board.
- 2.5. "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
- 2.6. "<u>Committee</u>" means the Compensation Committee of the Board.
- 2.7. "<u>Company</u>" means Churchill Downs Incorporated, a Kentucky corporation, with its principal place of business at 700 Central Avenue, Louisville, Kentucky 40208.
- 2.8. "Director" means a member of an Employer's board of directors.
- 2.9. "Director Fees" means the retainer, meeting and other fees payable by the Employer to a member of an Employer's board of directors for service performed as a board member.
- 2.10. "<u>Disability</u>" or "<u>Disabled</u>" means a physical or mental condition of the Participant which results in the Participant receiving benefits under an Employer's long term disability insurance plan, or in the event that Participant is not participating in an Employer's long term disability insurance plan, means a physical or mental condition which in the judgment of the Committee, based on medical reports and other evidence satisfactory to the Committee, prevents the Participant from satisfactorily performing Participant's usual duties for the Employer or duties of such other job or position which the Employer makes available to Participant and for which the Participant is qualified by reason of training, education or experience.
- 2.11. "Distribution Account" means the Account established for the Participant for distribution to the Participant on or after employment termination at the Participant's election in accordance with Section 5.
- 2.12. "Employee" means an individual who is an employee of an Employer and who is part of a select group of management or highly compensated employees of the Employer within the meaning of Labor Reg. §2520.104-23.

- 2.13. "<u>Employer</u>" means the Company and any subsidiary or affiliated company that adopts the Plan as to its eligible Employees and Directors pursuant to Section 7.
- 2.14. "<u>Hardship</u>" means a severe financial hardship to the Participant resulting from a sudden and unexpected illness or accident of the Participant or the Participant's dependent (as defined in Code Section 152(a)), loss of the Participant's property due to casualty or other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of events beyond the Participant's control. The need to send a Participant's child to college or the desire to purchase a home are not considered unforeseeable emergencies that qualify as a "hardship."

- 2.15. "<u>In-Service Account</u>" means the Account established for the Participant for distribution to the Participant before the Participant's employment termination with the Employer at the Participant's election in accordance with Section 5.
- 2.16. "<u>Participant</u>" means an Employee or Director who is or has been designated by the Committee as being eligible to participate in the Plan and who has an amount credited to an Account for his or her benefit under the Plan.
- 2.17."Plan" means the Churchill Downs Deferred Compensation Plan as described herein, and as amended from time to time.
- 2.18. "Profit Sharing Plan" means the Churchill Downs Incorporated Profit Sharing Plan.
- 2.19. "<u>Transferred Account</u>" means the Account established for the Participant, and reflecting deferred compensation transferred to the Plan pursuant to Section 3.9, for distribution to the Participant on or after employment termination at the Participant's election in accordance with Section 5 or as otherwise specified by the Committee pursuant to Section 3.9.

SECTION 3. PARTICIPATION, CONTRIBUTIONS AND DEFERRALS

- 3.1. <u>Eligibility</u>. The Plan is intended to constitute, and shall be administered to qualify as, a "top hat" plan exempt from the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, pursuant to Labor Reg. §2520.104-23 and shall be maintained strictly for a select group of management or highly compensated employees as contemplated by said regulation. Subject to the requirements of said regulation, the Committee may designate any of an Employer's management or highly compensated Employees or an Employer's Directors as being eligible to participate in the Plan. The Committee shall communicate designation of eligibility to the Employee or Director in writing as soon as administratively practicable.
- 3.2. <u>Commencement of Participation</u>. An Employee or Director who is designated as eligible to participate in the Plan in accordance with Section 3.1 shall commence participation on the next January 1 following the date the Employee or Director files his or her deferral election with the Committee, or its designated agent, in accordance with Section 3.4.
- 3.3. <u>Revocation of Right to Participate in Plan</u>. The Committee may revoke the right of any Participant to participate in the Plan, which revocation shall be effective with respect to Compensation and Director's Fees earned and payable after the date of such revocation. The revocation shall not alter or diminish the rights of the Participant with respect to amounts credited to the Participant's Account before the revocation.

- 3.4. <u>Participant Deferral Elections</u>. An Employee or Director who has been designated as eligible to participate in the Plan may elect, in writing on forms approved by the Committee, to defer the receipt of all or a portion (in one percent (1%) increments) of his or her Compensation and Director's Fees earned and payable after the effective date of such election and have such amount credited to the Participant's Account pursuant to the terms of the Plan. The deferral election shall continue from year to year until revoked or modified by the Participant. Deferral elections, and revocation or modifications thereto, must be made during the period of time established by the Committee before the beginning of the calendar year and shall be effective on the January 1 following receipt by the Committee of the completed election form.
- 3.5. <u>No Deferrals During Long Term Disability</u>. A Participant may not make deferrals under this Plan during any period that the Participant is receiving benefits under a long term disability plan of an Employer.
- 3.6. <u>Revocation/Modification of Deferral Elections</u>. Deferral elections may be revoked or modified by the Participant by notifying the Committee in writing of such revocation or modification on forms available from the Committee. Any revocation or modification of a deferral election shall be effective on the January 1 following receipt by the Committee of a completed revocation/modification form. Deferral elections shall be automatically revoked on the effective date of Plan termination and on the date the Participant becomes ineligible to participate in the Plan.
- 3.7. <u>Employer Matching Contributions</u>. The Participant's Account shall be credited with an Employer matching contribution on base compensation deferrals made to this Plan equal to the matching contribution the Participant would have received under the Profit Sharing Plan (whether or not the Participant participates in the Profit Sharing Plan) but for the dollar limits applicable under the Profit Sharing Plan less any matching contribution allocated to the Participant's account under the Profit Sharing Plan. No matching contributions shall be made on Transferred Accounts.
- 3.8. Employer Discretionary Contributions. The Employer may make additional contributions to the Account or any one or more Participants at its sole

discretion. Unless expressly so provided by the Committee, Employer contributions shall not be made to Transferred Accounts. The amount of Employer contributions credited to a Participant's Account pursuant to this Section 3.8, if any, shall be determined by the Employer in its sole discretion.

3.9. <u>Transfer Contributions</u>. A Participant may request a transfer to the Plan of contributions deferred under another deferred compensation plan which qualified as an unfunded "top hat" arrangement under Title I of ERISA as well as for income tax purposes. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may elect whether or not to accept transfers from other deferred compensation plans. Unless otherwise specified by the Committee, deferred accounts transferred to this Plan shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Plan, including but not limited to the time and method of distribution and the Participant shall make a distribution election in accordance with Section 5. No matching contributions shall be made on deferred compensation transferred to the Plan pursuant to this Section 3.9.

SECTION 4. VESTING AND ADMINISTRATION OF ACCOUNTS

- 4.1. <u>Credits/Debts to Account</u>. Compensation and Director's Fees deferred under this Plan pursuant to the Participant's election in accordance with Section 3.4 shall be credited to the Participant's Account as soon as administratively practical after the date the deferrals would otherwise have been payable to the Participant in accordance with the Employer's normal payroll practices. Matching contributions under Section 3.7 shall be credited to the Participant's Account at the time matching contributions are allocated to participant accounts under the Profit Sharing Plan. Employer discretionary contributions made by the Employer pursuant to Section 3.8 shall be credited to the Participant's Account at the time specified by the Employer.
- 4.2. Establishment of Rabbi Trust. The Committee may establish an irrevocable grantor trust to provide itself a source of funds to assist it in satisfying its liability to Participants and their beneficiaries under this Plan. In the event such rabbi trust is established, the Employer shall make cash contributions to the trust in such amounts and at such times as deferrals are made under the Plan and such other amounts and at such other times as the Committee deems appropriate in its sole discretion. Each Employer shall be the sole owner of the assets of the trust as to its participant and the Participant's beneficiaries to the assets of the trust shall be subject to the claims of the general creditors of the Employer. The sole interest of Participant and the Participant's beneficiaries to the assets of the trust shall be as a general creditor of the Employer.
- 4.3. <u>Vesting of Deferrals</u>. Compensation and Director's Fees credited to a Participant's Account, and notional earnings thereon, shall be one hundred percent (100%) vested and nonforfeitable at all times, subject to adjustment for notional investment losses and deemed transaction fees in accordance with Section 4.6. Transferred Accounts shall be one hundred percent (100%) vested unless otherwise specified by the Committee pursuant to Section 3.9.
- 4.4. <u>Vesting of Employer Contributions</u>. A Participant shall be vested in matching contributions credited to his or her Account pursuant to Section 3.7 and Employer discretionary contributions credited to his or her Account pursuant to Section 3.8, and earnings thereon, pursuant to the same vesting schedule applicable to matching contributions and employer discretionary contributions under the Profit Sharing Plan.
- 4.5. <u>Ownership and Investment of Accounts</u>. Amounts credited to a Participant's Account may be kept in any investment vehicles or assets as may be selected by the Committee in its discretion, subject to the right of the Participant to make an investment election in accordance with Section 4.6. Each Employer shall be the owner of all amounts credited to the Accounts of its participating Employees and Directors until paid to the Participant pursuant to Section 5.
- 4.6. <u>Participant's Right to Direct Investment of Account</u>. A Participant may elect to have his or her Account notionally invested in such investment options as are selected by the Committee and made available to Participants for notional investment purposes under the Plan from time to time. The value of a Participant's Account at any time shall be the value of such underlying notional investments. The Committee shall be under no obligation to make such investments; however, the Committee shall debit or credit, as the case may be, the Participant's Account with notional earnings or losses as if said investments had actually been made. The Participant's Account shall be reduced by an amount equal to the brokerage or other transaction costs that would have been incurred in connection with the deemed purchase or sale of an investment. Until such time as investment options are made available by the Committee, a Participant's Account will be credited with notional interest equal to the prime rate listed in the Money Rates section of *The Wall Street Journal* on the first business day of the applicable month, plus 100 base points.

- 4.7. Form of Investment Election. The investment election, if any, must be in writing in a form approved by the Committee, and must be delivered to the Committee and otherwise comply with the rules pertaining to such elections as established by the Committee, on or before such date as the Committee may specify to be valid. The election must designate the percentage of the Account to be notionally invested in each investment option selected; provided, however, that the minimum allocable to any notional investment option shall be one percent (1%) and all percentage designations must be in multiples of one percent (1%). If the Participant fails to make a timely election pursuant to this Section 4.7, such Participant's deferrals shall be invested in a money market fund or its equivalent as designated by the Committee.
- 4.8. <u>Effective Date of Investment Election</u>. Any investment election made by the Participant pursuant to this Section 4 shall be effective as soon as administratively practicable after receipt by the Committee, pursuant to procedure established by the Committee and communicated to Participants.
- 4.9. <u>Changes to Investment Election</u>. Participants may change their investment allocation elections no more than twelve (12) times during any calendar year. Changes are made either by delivering a new investment election form to the Committee, or via an Internet website designed by the Committee, in

accordance with the rules of Section 4 and procedures established by the Committee. Investment allocation changes must be in increments of one percent (1%) and shall be effective in accordance with the rules of Section 4.8.

4.10.<u>Assumption of Investment Risk</u>. The Participant agrees to assume all risk in connection with any change, including any decrease, in the value of Participant's Account which is notionally invested pursuant to the Participant's investment election in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4.

SECTION 5.

DISPOSITION OF PARTICIPANT ACCOUNTS

5.1. <u>Plan Distribution Elections</u>. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, amounts credited to a Participant's Account shall be paid to the Participant in accordance with the Participant's distribution election; provided, however, that if on the elected distribution date, any notional investment gains or losses cannot then be determined, such distribution shall be delayed until such accounting can be completed. Distribution elections shall be in writing on forms approved by the Committee, shall specify a distribution date in accordance with Section 5.2, shall specify the form of distribution in accordance with Section 5.3, and shall be filed with the Committee upon first becoming eligible to participate in the Plan. A Participant's In-Service Account distribution date and a the form of distribution if the Participant's employment ends before the designated date. A Participant's In-Service Account distribution election is irrevocable. A Participant may change his or her Distribution Account or Transferred Account (unless otherwise specified by the Committee in accordance with Section 3.9) distribution election at any time; provided, however, that only the most recent election that is at least eighteen (18) months from the Participant's elected distribution election that is changed within eighteen (18) months of Plan participation); any distribution election that is changed within eighteen (18) months of the distribution

6

5.2. Distribution Date.

- (a) <u>Distribution and Transferred Accounts</u>. A Participant's Distribution Account, and the Participant's Transferred Account unless specified otherwise by the Committee pursuant to Section 3.9, shall be distributed to the Participant, in the manner elected by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.3, as soon as administratively practical, but not less than thirty (30) days, after the Participant's employment termination date. For purposes of Section 5, the separation from service of a Participant with one Employer will not interrupt the continuity of participation of such Participant if, concurrently with or immediately after such separation, the Participant is employed by one or more of the other Employers who are participating Employers in accordance with Section 7.
- (b) <u>In-Service Account</u>. A Participant's In-Service Account shall be distributed to the Participant in a single sum, as soon as administratively practical following the date elected by the Participant that is any December 31 on or after the sixth anniversary of the date the Participant first makes deferrals to his or her In-Service Account, provided the Participant is still employed with the Employer on that date. If the Participant's employment terminates before the designated date, distribution shall be made to the Participant, in the form elected by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.3, as soon as administratively practical, but not less than thirty (30) days, after the Participant's employment termination date.
- 5.3. Form of Distribution. Amounts credited to a Participant's Distribution Account and Transferred Account shall, at the Participant's election, be payable to the Participant in a single sum cash payment or in equal monthly cash installments over five (5) or ten (10) years. Amounts credited to a Participant's In-Service Account shall be distributed to the Participant in a single sum cash payment valued as of the December 31 elected by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.2 or, in the event of the Participant's employment termination before said date, at the Participant's election, shall be payable to the Participant in a single sum cash payment or in equal monthly cash installments over five (5) or ten (10) years.
- 5.4. <u>Hardship Distributions</u>. In the event of Hardship, all deferrals pursuant to Section 3.3 shall cease and amounts credited to the Participant's Account as of the date of such Hardship shall be paid to the Participant in a single sum payment as soon as administratively practicable after the date of the Hardship. Notwithstanding the foregoing: [i] payment shall be limited to the amount reasonable necessary to satisfy the Hardship, and [ii] payment shall not be made to the extent that the Hardship is or may be relieved through reimbursement or compensation by insurance or otherwise, by liquidation of the Participant's assets, to the extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause several financial hardship, or by cessation of deferrals under this Plan. Any decision of the Committee with respect to the application of the provisions of this section shall have a presumption of correctness, and the burden shall be on Participant to rebut such presumption by a preponderance of the evidence. The Participant shall be provided with a reasonable opportunity to present any and all evidence on his or her behalf.

- 5.5. <u>Disability Distributions</u>. If a Participant becomes Disabled, amounts credited to the Account of the such Participant shall be distributed to the Participant as soon as administratively practicable following a determination of such Disability. The form of distribution shall be in accordance with the Participant's distribution election made in accordance with Section 5.3.
- 5.6. <u>Death Distributions</u>. If a Participant dies before distribution of all the amounts credited to his or her Account, any amounts remaining in the Participant's Account shall be distributed to such deceased Participant's designated beneficiary or beneficiaries in the form specified by the Participant in accordance with Section 5.3. Payments shall commence as soon as administratively practical after the date of the Participant's death. If distributions have already commenced before the Participant's death, the Participant's designated beneficiary will continue to receive payments according to the same schedule as had been made to the Participant before his or her death. All beneficiary designations shall be in writing on forms approved by the Committee and shall be filed with the

Committee. A Participant may, at any time, revoke or change any beneficiary designation by filing a new written designation with the Committee. If there is no effective beneficiary designation filed with the Committee at the time of the Participant's death, distribution of amounts otherwise payable to the deceased Participant under the Plan shall be paid in a single sum cash distribution to the personal representative of the Participant's estate as a part of the Participant's estate. If a beneficiary designated by the Participant to receive the Participant's benefits shall survive the Participant but die before receiving all distributions hereunder, the balance thereof shall be paid in a single sum cash distribution to such deceased beneficiary's estate, unless either (i) the deceased beneficiary designates otherwise by a written beneficiary designation filed with the Committee, in which case such designation shall govern, or (ii) the Participant shall have expressly provided otherwise in the Participant's beneficiary designation. The Committee, upon making a reasonable effort to ascertain the identity of the proper beneficiary or beneficiaries to receive any amounts payable pursuant to these provisions shall be entitled to rely on information reasonably available to it, and upon making any payments provided herein to any beneficiary believed in good faith by the Committee to be entitled thereto, shall have no further liability to any person for such payments.

5.7. <u>Disposition of Account on Plan Termination</u>. Upon termination of the Plan, distribution of Accounts shall be made, at the time and in the form elected by the Participant, according to the distribution election on file with the Committee at the time of such termination.

- 5.8. <u>Disposition of Account If Participating Employer Ceases To Be An Affiliated Company</u>. In the event the Employer employing the Participant ceases to be a subsidiary or affiliated company with Company and thus ceases to be a participating Employer as provided by Section 7.2, the Participant's deferral election and active participation in the Plan shall cease on the effective date of such event. Distribution of the Participant's Account shall be made at the time and in the form elected by the Participant pursuant to this Section 5, unless the Committee and the Employer agree to transfer the Accounts of affected Participants to a deferred compensation plan of such Employer to be distributed to affected Participants pursuant to the terms of such plan.
- 5.9. <u>Accelerated Distributions</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may accelerate the time for distribution of Accounts and, notwithstanding the Participant's distribution election, may distribute any vested amounts credited to a Participant's Account in a single sum payment if the Participant is discharged by the Employer for Cause.
- 5.10.<u>In-Kind Distributions</u>. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 5, the Committee may, in its discretion, and subject to the requirements of the asset, make payment to the Participant or Participant's beneficiaries in kind in lieu of cash to the extent amounts credited to the Participant's Account are actually invested in an asset.
- 5.11.<u>Tax Withholding</u>. The Committee shall deduct from the distributions under the Plan any federal, state or local withholding or other taxes or charges which the Employer is required to deduct under applicable law. The Employer shall be entitled to deduct from other compensation payable to the Participant, any employment or other tax required to be withheld as amounts are deferred under the Plan.
- 5.12. <u>Presumed Competency</u>. Every person receiving or claiming payments under the Plan shall be conclusively presumed to be mentally competent until the date on which the Committee receives a written notice in a form and manner acceptable to the Committee that such person is incompetent and that a guardian, conservator or other person legally vested with the interest of his or her estate has been appointed. In the event a guardian or conservator of the estate or any person receiving or claiming payments under the Plan shall be appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction, payments under the Plan may be made to such guardian or conservator provided that the proper proof of appointment and continuing qualification is furnished in a form and manner acceptable to the Committee. Any such payments so made shall be a complete discharge of any liability or obligation of Employer or the Committee regarding such payments.
- 5.13 Forfeiture of Unclaimed Benefits. Each Participant shall keep the Committee informed of his or her current address and the current address of his or her beneficiary. The Committee shall not be obligated to search for the whereabouts of any person. If the Committee is unable to locate any person to whom a payment is due under the Plan or a distribution payment check is not presented for payment, such payment shall be irrevocably forfeited at the earlier of: (1) the day preceding the date such payment would otherwise escheat pursuant to any applicable escheat law; or (2) the later of: [i] three (3) years after the date on which the payment was first due; or [ii] ninety (90) days after issuance of the check. Forfeited payment shall be returned to the source of the payment (*e.g.*, if benefits are funded through contributions by the Employer from its general assets, the forfeited payment shall be returned to the Employer; if the forfeited benefit payment is made from trust funds, the forfeited payment shall revert to the trust from which the payment was made).

9

SECTION 6. COMMITTEE ADMINISTRATION

- 6.1. <u>Plan Committee</u>. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. A Participant who is also a member of the Committee shall not participate in any decision involving an election made by him or her or relating in any way to his or her individual rights, duties and obligations as a Participant under the Plan. The Committee may appoint one or more employees or agents to assist it in administration of the Plan and may delegate its duties under the Plan to such employees or agents.
- 6.2. <u>Committee Action</u>. A majority of the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. All actions taken by the Committee at a meeting shall be by the vote of a majority of those present at such meeting but any action may be taken by the Committee without a meeting upon written consent signed by all of the members of the Committee.
- 6.3. Plan Rules and Regulations. The Committee may from time to time establish rules and regulations for the administration of the Plan and adopt standard

forms for such matters as elections, beneficiary designations and applications for benefits, provided such rules and forms are not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan.

- 6.4. <u>Determinations by Committee</u>. All determinations of the Committee, including, but not limited to, all questions of construction and interpretation, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all parties and the Committee shall have complete discretion in making such determinations.
- 6.5. <u>Plan Records</u>. The Committee shall be responsible for maintaining books and records for the Plan.

ARTICLE 7. ADOPTION AND WITHDRAWAL

- 7.1. <u>Adoption by Employers</u>. An Employer authorized by the Committee to participate in this Plan shall adopt the same by written acknowledgment to the Committee. By so adopting the Plan, such Employer designates the Company as the Employer entitled to administer the Plan and to amend or terminate the Plan through the Committee.
- 7.2. <u>Withdrawal of a Participating Employer</u>. A participating Employer may withdraw from the Plan as of any date upon ninety (90) days' advance written notice to the Committee, or upon such shorter notice as the Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit. If an Employer shall cease to exist or ceases to be an affiliate of Company, it shall automatically be withdrawn from participation in the Plan effective as of the date it ceases to exist or ceases to be an affiliated company unless a successor organization adopts the Plan with the consent of the Committee in accordance with the provisions of this section.

7.3. <u>Obligation of Employers</u>. Each Employer by adopting the Plan agrees to make all payments required under the Plan to be made or provided to or on behalf of the Participants employed by such Employer, and agrees that the liability for making such payments and providing such benefits shall be the sole and exclusive obligation of such Employer. In addition, each Employer by adopting this Plan agrees to pay all fees and reimburse all expenses to Company as required by the Committee and as agreed to by the parties in connection with the administration of this Plan.

SECTION 8. CLAIM AND REVIEW PROCEDURES

- 8.1. <u>Claims Procedure</u>. Any person who believes he or she is being denied any rights or benefits under the Plan may file a claim in writing with the Committee. If the claim is denied (in whole or part), the Committee will notify the claimant of its decision in writing. The notification will be written in a manner intended to be understood by the claimant and will contain [i] reasons for the denial, [ii] reference to pertinent Plan provisions, [iii] a description of additional material or information that is needed, and [iv] information as to the steps to be taken if the claimant wishes to submit a request for review. The notification will be given within ninety (90) days after the claim is received by the Committee (or within one hundred eighty (180) days, if special circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim, and if written notice of the extension and circumstances is given to the claimant within the initial ninety (90) day period). If notification is not given within this period, the claim will be considered denied as of the last day of such period and the claimant may request review of the claim.
- 8.2. <u>Review Procedure</u>. Within sixty (60) days of the receipt by the claimant of the written notice of denial of the claim, or within sixty (60) days after the claim is deemed denied, if applicable, the claimant may file a written request with the Committee that it conduct a review of the claim, including the conducting of a hearing, if considered necessary by the Committee. In connection with the claimant's appeal of the denial of a benefit, the claimant may review pertinent documents and may submit issues and comments in writing. The Committee shall make a decision on the claim appeal not later than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the claimant's request for review, unless special circumstances (such as the need to hold a hearing, if necessary) require an extension of time for processing, in which case the sixty (60) day period may be extended to one hundred and twenty (120) days. The Committee shall notify the claimant in writing of any extension. The decision upon review shall [i] include specific reasons for the decision, [ii] be written in a manner intended to be understood by the claimant, and [iii] contain references to the Plan provisions on which the decision is based.

11

SECTION 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 9.1. <u>Amendment or Termination</u>. Company reserves the right to amend, modify, terminate or discontinue the Plan at any time by appropriate action taken by the Committee, provided, however, that no such action shall reduce the amounts then credited to any Account of any Participant, subject to adjustment for notional investment losses and deemed transaction fees in accordance with Section 4.6 and the claims of the Employer's general creditors.
- 9.2. <u>Participant's</u> Rights Unsecured. The Employer shall remain the owner of amounts deferred under the Plan by its Employees and Directors participating in the Plan. The Participant and the Participant's beneficiary have only the Employer's unsecured promise to pay. The rights accruing to the Participant and the Participant's beneficiary are those of an unsecured general creditor of the Employer. Any contract, policy or other asset which the Employer may utilize to assure itself of the funds to make payment shall not serve in any way as security to the Participant or beneficiary for the Employer's performance under the Plan. Any account established under the Plan is for bookkeeping purposes only and shall not be considered to create a fund for the Participant or beneficiary.

- 9.3. <u>Nontransferability/Nonalienability</u>. No right of any Participant or beneficiary to receive any Plan payment shall be subject to alienation, transfer, sale, assignment, pledge, attachment, garnishment or encumbrance of any kind. Any attempt to alienate, sell, transfer, assign, pledge or otherwise encumber any such payments whether presently or thereafter payable shall be void. Subject to Section 9.7, any Plan payment due shall not in any manner be subject to debts or liabilities of any Participant, beneficiary or other person.
- 9.4. <u>Participant Obligation to Furnish Information</u>. Each person entitled to receive a Plan payment, whether a Participant, a duly designated beneficiary, a guardian or otherwise, shall provide the Committee with such information as it may from time to time deem necessary or in its best interest in administering the Plan. Any such person shall also furnish the Committee with such documents, evidence, data or other information as the Committee may from time to time deem necessary or advisable.
- 9.5. <u>No Right of Employment</u>. The Plan shall not be deemed to constitute a contract of employment between a Participant and the Employer, nor shall any Plan provision restrict the right of the Employer to discharge a Participant, or restrict the right of a Participant to terminate his or her employment.
- 9.6. <u>Plan Expenses</u>. Unless paid by the Employer, expenses of administering the Plan shall be paid by the Participants, except as otherwise provided herein, and shall be debited among Participant Accounts in a reasonable manner as determined by the Committee. Expenses that are specific to a Participant's Account shall be debited solely to such Participant's Account and shall not be spread among other Participants.

| 1 | |
|---|---|
| | / |
| - | _ |

- 9.7. <u>Offsets</u>. As a condition to eligibility to participate in the Plan, each Participant consents to the deduction from amounts otherwise payable under the Plan to the Participant and the Participant beneficiaries all amounts owed by the Participant to the Employer and the Company and its affiliates to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law.
- 9.8. <u>Limitation of Actions</u>. No lawsuit with respect to any benefit payable or other matter arising out or relating to the Plan may be brought before exhaustion of the claim and review procedures set forth in Section 8 and any lawsuit must filed no later than nine (9) months after a claim is denied or be forever barred.
- 9.9. <u>Governing Law</u>. The Plan shall be construed, administered and governed in all respects under and by the applicable laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. By participating in the Plan, the Participant irrevocably consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and of any federal court located in Jefferson County, Kentucky in connection with any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to the Plan, any document or instrument delivered pursuant to or in connection with the Plan.

Executed this 15TH day of March, 2001 but effective January 1, 2001.

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED

By: /s/Thomas H. Meeker

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of June 1, 2005 (the "Employment Agreement"), between CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED, a Kentucky corporation ("Company") and William C. Carstanjen ("Carstanjen").

1. <u>Employment</u>. Pursuant to this Employment Agreement, the Company shall employ Carstanjen, and Carstanjen shall accept employment, in the capacity of Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Chief Development Officer of the Company reporting to the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, except, where applicable, reporting to the Board of Directors or a committee thereof. Carstanjen and the Company hereby agree that July 5, 2005 is the date on which Carstanjen's employment shall begin (the "Effective Date"). Carstanjen shall exert his best efforts and devote his full time and attention to the business and affairs of the Company. Carstanjen shall have all powers and responsibilities attendant to the position of General Counsel and Chief Development Officer assigned to him or delegated to him by the Company's President and CEO (the "CEO"). The duties and responsibilities of said position may be described in a position description mutually acceptable to him and the CEO; provided that said position shall, in any case, include (x) those normal and customary duties associated with a position of general counsel (including managing the day to day activities of the legal department, compliance, regulatory reporting and advising the Board of Directors on governance issues), (y) responsibility for planning and managing the Company's business development activities and (z) serving on the Management Committee of the Company.

2. <u>Compensation and Perquisites</u>.

A. <u>Salary</u>. As compensation for the services rendered by Carstanjen hereunder, the Company shall pay to Carstanjen a base salary of \$320,000 a year, payable in accordance with the Company's standard payroll procedures. The base salary shall be prorated in 2005 based upon the proportion of the year remaining as of the Effective Date. Salary adjustments, if any, shall be made, in the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, at any time but will normally occur on February 1 of each year in accordance with standard Company policy and in no event may Carstanjen's base salary be reduced below the annualized base salary paid in the preceding year. All payments and other compensation to Carstanjen shall be subject to applicable withholding.

B. <u>Expenses</u>. The Company will reimburse Carstanjen for all reasonable and necessary travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by him in the performance of his duties. The Company will pay Carstanjen's reasonable travel and entertainment expenses and other reasonable expenses incurred on behalf of the Company's business. Carstanjen shall present to the Company on a timely basis from time to time an itemized account of such expenses in such form as may be required by the Company. The reimbursement of such expenses shall be subject to the customary policies of the Company.

- C. <u>Automobile</u>. The Company will provide Carstanjen with an automobile allowance of \$900 per month.
- D. <u>Dues</u>. The Company will pay for Carstanjen's dues (excluding any initiation fee) for any one country club.

E. <u>Moving Expenses</u>. The Company will pay to Carstanjen his reasonable moving expenses actually incurred (the "Relocation Expenses") which includes but is not limited to, transportation costs, cost of relocating household goods, dislocation allowance, temporary housing, sales expenses relating to home (including any commissions due to any real estate agent in connection with the sale or purchase of a house), living allowances and the gross up of such expenses to cover tax liability incurred by him in connection with his relocation to Louisville, Kentucky. Carstanjen will use Berger Allied for the relocation of household goods. Carstanjen shall present to the Company an itemized account of such expenses. The Company and Carstanjen each agree to use all reasonable efforts to keep such Relocation Expenses at or below \$150,000; provided that the Company remains responsible for all Relocation Expenses in excess of \$150,000 in accordance with the first sentence of this Paragraph. Carstanjen represents to the Company that he intends to place his Connecticut home for sale as soon as reasonably practicable and to relocate himself and his family in a newly purchase home in the Louisville area as soon as reasonably practicable. The Company represents that it intends to use the Buyer Value Option "BVO" Program.

3. <u>Employee Benefits</u>.

A. <u>Employee Stock Purchase Plan</u>. Carstanjen shall be entitled to participate in the Churchill Downs Incorporated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such plan.

B. <u>Restricted Stock Plan</u>. Carstanjen shall be entitled to participate in the Restricted Stock Plan, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such plan. Carstanjen shall receive an initial stock grant of 5,500 shares of restricted stock, on the Effective Date, which will vest in five years in accordance with the terms of the Restricted Stock Plan. In addition, Carstanjen shall, subject to the terms and conditions of the Restricted Stock Plan, be awarded no less than 5,500 shares of restricted stock in November 2005 as part of the annual long-term incentive awards to key executives.

C. <u>Medical and Life Insurance</u>. Carstanjen will be eligible to participate in the Company's health plans, disability plans and group life insurance plans on the same basis as generally offered to other full-time employees and executives of the Company. The Company acknowledges that Carstanjen seeks to obtain approximately \$3,000,000 of additional life insurance and disability coverage, at his own cost, and the Company agrees to reasonably assist Carstanjen in good faith to obtain such coverage as of the Effective Date.

D. Incentive Compensation Plan. Carstanjen shall be entitled to participate in the Churchill Downs Incorporated (1997) Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such plan. Under the terms of such plan, Carstanjen's Target Award (as defined in such plan) for 2005 shall be set at 60% of base salary. Carstanjen's award for 2005 is guaranteed to be no less than 60% of his annualized base salary without any pro-ration due to time of employment. This amount is to be paid in March 2006.

E. <u>Section 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan</u>. Carstanjen shall be entitled to participate in the Churchill Downs Incorporated's Section 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such plan.

F. <u>Other Plans and Programs</u>. Carstanjen will be eligible to participate in all other plans and programs offered to employees and executives of the Company, subject to and on a basis consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of such plans, including, without limitation, the Deferred Compensation Plan, the Stock Purchase Plan, the Disability Plan and the Group Life Insurance Plan; provided that, in some instances, Carstanjen will not be able to participate in such plans until he has completed the required term of employment as required under the terms of such plans.

4. <u>Vacation</u>. Carstanjen shall be awarded paid time off (PTO) consistent with the Company's established policy as amended from time to time.

5. <u>Termination</u>.

A. <u>By Company</u>. The Company may terminate Carstanjen's employment at any time, for any reason. In the event Carstanjen is terminated by the Company without just cause or in the event of a Constructive Termination, the Company covenants the following (the "Termination Benefits");

i. the Company shall pay Carstanjen twenty-four month's base salary (at the base salary then in effect unless a reduction in base salary is the basis for a Constructive Termination, in which case, the base salary then in effect immediately prior to such reduction),

ii. the Company shall pay Carstanjen any pro rata annual bonus for the year in which Carstanjen's termination occurs based, at a minimum, on the Target Bonus (as defined in the Incentive Compensation Plan), subject to the Company's accomplishment of the Threshold Company Goal under the Incentive Compensation Plan,

iii. the Company shall pay Carstanjen the balance of any annual or long-term cash incentive awards, if any, earned (but not yet paid) subject to the terms of the applicable plan or program,

iv. any equity based award shall be governed by the applicable plan or program (except as set forth in item (v) below),

v. the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors shall terminate any restrictions set forth pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Restricted Stock Plan or otherwise contained in the instruments evidencing the granting of restricted stock such that there is no "Restriction Period" (as defined in the Restricted Stock Plan) applicable to shares granted to Carstanjen under the Restricted Stock Plan, and

vi. the Company shall permit Carstanjen to continue to participate in all other employee benefits programs in which Carstanjen participated, in each case, from the date of termination until the six month anniversary thereof, with the exception of the Churchill Downs Incorporated's Section 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan, the 2005 Churchill Downs Incorporated Deferred Compensation Plan and the Churchill Downs Incorporated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; provided however, that the Company's obligations under this Subparagraph (vi) shall be reduced or eliminated, as applicable, to the extent Carstanjen receives similar coverage and benefits under plans and programs of a subsequent employer.

It is stipulated that any payments made in accordance with the foregoing shall be paid to and received by Carstanjen as liquidated damages for the unlawful termination of his employment and not as a penalty and Carstanjen shall be entitled to receive no further sums under this Employment Agreement or as a result of his employment with the Company except such as have accrued as of the date of such termination or as otherwise specifically provided in this Employment Agreement. In consideration of the receipt of such payment, Carstanjen specifically releases and discharges any and all claims and causes of action of any kind or nature whatsoever, whether known or unknown and whether specifically mentioned or not, which may exist or might be claimed to exist at or prior to the date of termination of employment, as well as any future injuries, losses or damages not now known or anticipated but which may later develop or become discovered (including the effects or consequences thereof), and which are attributable to the claims. This waiver includes any claims which might exist as of this date under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act ("ADEA"). However, Carstanjen is not waiving any such ADEA claims which might arise after the date of execution of this Employment Agreement. Carstanjen shall execute the Company's standard release form, as modified to be otherwise consistent with the terms of this Employment Agreement, as a condition to receipt of the severance payment provided in this paragraph 5(A).

"Just cause" shall mean [i] the willful and continued failure of Carstanjen to perform substantially his duties hereunder (other than any such failure resulting from incapacity due to disability), after written demand for substantial performance improvement is delivered by the Company that specifically identifies the manner in which the Company believes Carstanjen has not substantially performed his duties, or [ii] the willful engaging by Carstanjen in illegal conduct or gross misconduct which is materially and demonstrably injurious to the business or reputation of the Company, or [iii] the willful violation by Carstanjen of the provisions of this Employment Agreement. For purposes of this paragraph, no act, or failure to act, on Carstanjen's part, shall be considered "willful" unless done, or omitted to be done, by him in bad faith or without reasonable belief that such action or omission was in the best interests of the Company. Should Carstanjen's employment be terminated for just cause, the Company shall be obligated to pay Carstanjen's then base salary only through the end of the month during which such termination occurs, plus such other sums as are payable under this Employment Agreement and which shall have accrued through the end of such month.

B. <u>Termination by Carstanjen</u>. Carstanjen may at any time resign from his position after giving the Company not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice of the effective date of his resignation. Any such resignation shall not be deemed to be a material breach by Carstanjen of this Employment Agreement and, except as contemplated by Paragraph, 5(C), Carstanjen shall not be entitled to receive the severance payment contemplated by Paragraph 5(A) above. It is further agreed that upon such resignation, except for obligations of either party to the other which have accrued through the date of Carstanjen's resignation as otherwise specifically provided in this Employment Agreement, Carstanjen and the Company shall become and remain fully and finally released from all further and future obligations of performance under this Employment Agreement.

C. <u>Constructive Termination</u>. Carstanjen may, in his sole discretion, terminate his employment with the Company by virtue of the Company's Constructive Termination of his employment. "Constructive Termination" shall mean: (i) the assignment to Carstanjen of any duties inconsistent in any material respect with those of the general counsel and chief development officer (including office, title and reporting requirements) or the authority, duties or responsibilities as contemplated by Paragraph 1 of this Employment Agreement, or (ii) reduction of base salary. Prior to Carstanjen exercising his right to terminate this Employment Agreement, he shall give written notice to the Company of his intention to terminate his employment on account of a Constructive Termination and such notice shall state in detail the act or acts or the failure or failures to act that constitute the grounds on which the Constructive Termination. The Company shall have sixty (60) days upon receipt of the notice in which to cure such conduct.

6. <u>Non-Disclosure</u>. Carstanjen agrees that he shall not, at any time during or following his employment with the Company, disclose or use, except in the course of such employment, in the pursuit of the business of the Company, any confidential information or proprietary data of the Company.

7. <u>Gross Up Payment</u>. In the event the Company terminates Carstanjen without just cause or there is a Constructive Termination and, in either case, all Termination Benefits paid or provided to Carstanjen pursuant to the Employment Agreement and under all other plans and programs of the Company (the "Aggregate Payment") is determined to constitute a Parachute Payment, as such term is defined in Section 280G(b)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, the Company shall pay to Carstanjen, prior to the time of any excise tax imposed by section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Excise Tax") is payable with

respect to such Aggregate Payment, an additional amount which, after the imposition of all federal, state and local income and excise taxes thereon, is equal to the Excise Tax on the Aggregate Payment. The determination of whether the Aggregate Payment constitutes a Parachute Payment and, if so, the amount to be paid to Carstanjen and the time of payment shall be made by an independent auditor (the "Auditor") jointly selected by the Company and Carstanjen and paid for by the Company. The Auditor shall be a nationally recognized United States public accounting firm which has not acted in any way on behalf of the Company. If the Company and Carstanjen cannot agree on the firm to serve as the Auditor, then Carstanjen and the Company shall each select one accounting firm and those firms shall jointly select the accounting firm to serve as the Auditor.

8. <u>Notices</u>. All notices, requests, demands and other communications provided for by this Employment Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given if and when mailed in the continental United States by registered or certified mail or personally delivered to the party entitled thereto at the address stated below or to such changed address as the addressee may have given by a similar notice:

| To the Company: | Churchill Downs Incorporated 700 Central Avenue Louisville, Kentucky 40208 |
|-----------------|--|
| To Carstanjen: | William C. Carstanjen 47 Prince's Pine Road West Norwalk, CT 06850 |

9. <u>Amendment or Modification; Waiver</u>. No provision of this Employment Agreement may be amended, modified or waived unless such amendment, modification or waiver shall be authorized by the Board of Directors and shall be agreed to in writing, signed by Carstanjen and by the CEO. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Employment Agreement, no waiver by either party hereto of any breach by the other party thereto of any condition or provision of this Employment Agreement to be performed by such other party shall be deemed a waiver of a subsequent breach of such condition or provision or a waiver of a similar or dissimilar provision or condition at the same or at any prior or subsequent time.

10. <u>Severability</u>. In the event that any provision or portion of this Employment Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions and portions of this Employment Agreement shall be unaffected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the fullest extent permitted by law.

11. <u>Applicable Law</u>. This Employment Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

12. <u>Obligation to Mitigate; No Right of Offset</u>. In the event of any termination of employment, Carstanjen shall be under no obligation to seek other employment and, except as specifically provided herein, there shall be no offset against amounts due to Carstanjen under this Employment Agreement on account of any remuneration attributable to any subsequent employment that he may obtain or for claims the Company may have against him.

13. Expenses. In the event the Company does not comply with its obligations under this Employment Agreement or causes or attempts to cause litigation seeking to have this Employment Agreement declared unenforceable, then, in such event, the Company irrevocably authorizes Carstanjen to retain counsel of his choice at the sole expense of the Company to represent Carstanjen in connection with the initiation or defense of any litigation or other legal action in connection with the enforcement of the terms of this Employment Agreement. All expenses shall be fully paid by the Company if Carstanjen prevails in the final, binding, non-appealable outcome of the litigation or other legal action. The Company agrees to reimburse Carstanjen for his expenses under this Paragraph 13 on a monthly basis upon presentation by Carstanjen of a statement prepared by such counsel up to a maximum aggregate amount of \$500,000. Carstanjen agrees to repay all reimbursed expenses under this Paragraph 13 in the event the Company prevails in the final, binding, non-appealable outcome of the litigation or other legal action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Employment Agreement the date and year first above written.

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED

By:/s/ Thomas H. Meeker

Thomas H. Meeker, President and Chief Executive Officer

By:/s/ William Carstanjen

William C. Carstanjen

CHURCHILL DOWNS INCORPORATED NAMES WILLIAM CARSTANJEN AS GENERAL COUNSEL AND CHIEF DEVELOPMENT OFFICER

LOUISVILLE, Ky. (June 15, 2005) – Churchill Downs Incorporated (Nasdaq: CHDN) ("CDI" or "Company") today announced the hiring of former General Electric Company ("GE") executive William C. Carstanjen as the Company's general counsel and chief development officer. Carstanjen will join CDI on July 5 and will report directly to Thomas H. Meeker, the Company's president and chief executive officer.

Carstanjen most recently served as general counsel and managing director for GE Commercial Finance – Energy Financial Services, one of eight main divisions of Commercial Finance with over \$12 billion in assets and more than \$300 million in annual net income. During his five years with GE, Carstanjen led negotiations of a number of structured transactions, acquisitions and dispositions, first as transactions and finance counsel to the company's corporate offices, and later as lead lawyer for two different divisions.

At CDI, Carstanjen will oversee all legal affairs, corporate development activities and public affairs of the Company, serve as a member of the senior management team and provide counsel on a wide range of strategic, tactical and operational issues.

"Bill Carstanjen brings to CDI a level of legal and business 'deal-making' expertise that is essential for a company aggressively seeking growth through development activities," said Meeker. "While at GE, Bill negotiated and closed several multi-million dollar acquisitions that resulted in new growth channels for the company. This experience should serve as an ideal complement to our existing development, public affairs and legal staff, and help enhance our ability to grow CDI and create additional shareholder value."

In the past year, CDI spent approximately \$8.7 million on ballot initiatives in support of alternative gaming and approximately \$60 million to acquire Fair Grounds Race Course and the racetrack's 10 affiliated off-track betting ("OTB") facilities as well as the video poker machine manufacturer that supplies machines to most of the OTBs. This more aggressive approach to development, a key component of the Company's strategic plan, attracted Carstanjen to the newly created position.

— MORE —

Churchill Downs Incorporated Appoints William Carstanjen As General Counsel and Chief Development Officer June 15, 2005

Page 2

"It is exciting to be a part of a Company with such a storied history and proud tradition of providing its customers with a unique entertainment experience," said Carstanjen. "I am eager to work with the management team at CDI to build upon the Company's 131-year foundation and aggressively grow its business through acquisitions, alternative gaming and other development initiatives."

In addition to Carstanjen's most recent post as the lead lawyer for Energy Financial Services, he also served from 2002 to 2004 as general counsel for GE Specialty Materials, a division created in 2001 that grew from \$1.8 billion in revenues to approximately \$3 billion in revenues. In the two years prior as transactions and finance counsel, he represented various GE divisions in U.S. and international mergers and acquisitions. From 1994 to 2000, Carstanjen was a corporate associate of Cravath, Swaine & Moore, where his practice covered such areas as banking and structured finance, securities, and mergers and acquisitions. An honors graduate of the University of California, Berkeley, Carstanjen earned his law degree from Columbia University.

Rebecca C. Reed, who has served as CDI's general counsel and corporate secretary since 1998, will remain the Company's corporate secretary in her new position as senior vice president, senior counsel.

Churchill Downs Incorporated, headquartered in Louisville, Ky., owns and operates world-renowned horse racing venues throughout the United States. The Company's seven racetracks in California, Florida, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky and Louisiana host 121 graded-stakes events and many of North America's most prestigious races, including the Kentucky Derby and Kentucky Oaks, Hollywood Gold Cup and Arlington Million. CDI racetracks have hosted nine Breeders' Cup World Thoroughbred Championships – more than any other North American racing company. CDI also owns off-track betting facilities and has interests in various television production, telecommunications and racing services companies that support CDI's network of simulcasting and racing operations. CDI trades on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol CHDN and can be found on the Internet at www.churchilldownsincorporated.com.

— END —